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J(b)(6) !(Ministry of Culture) 

From: ltb)(6) 
Sent: Tuesda 
To: (b)(6) 

Cc: 

Subject: Re: Sites and air 

Dear~ 
below is all I have been able to findout so far, the second FRAGO is a very 
short list of sites indeed and consists of sites with confirmed and active 
looting plus abu salabikh which we dont know about one way or another. It 
does not include all the known looted sites by any means. As to sites with 
security apart from Babylon I dont know of any apart from Ur (the Talil 
airbase) . I did have an email from l(b)(6) jabout Kish though and 
she seemd to think that was now a camp but that the soldiers there did not 
know it was anything archaeological and thought that the ziggurats were 
hills (Kish has 2 zigs}. Kish is not far away and I thought I would try and 
visit soon. 

I was a bit disturbed by the reaction here to my Nejef trip the general 
feeling was that sites with holes in them did not mean much and nothign 
could be done and it was only if you actually saw people looting did that 
count. Peoples other suggestion was that I should either shoot the looters 
(which I can not do as I dent have a gun and would not be prepared to do 
anyway) or set up a security force (as I have never set up a police force 
frorn scratch before I regard myself as unqualified to do so) . 

l(b)(6) 

Monday 8th July Air report 

I had finally made contact with l(b)(6l the air officer for the HACC 
(Humanitarian Assistance communications centre } on 4th July having been 
told of his existence by j(b)(6) I I showed him j(b)(6) I site list and a 
selection of the already known looted sites and those with reported looting 
and sent him my report about the looted sites SE of Nejef on the 6th which 
he in turn forwarded to the MEF LNOs (Marine expeditionary force liaison 
officers) and I~ and saw the G2 MEF LNO (ie the officer in charge of 
intell:..gence}. ~told me he would try to find out about the poss of heli 
or similar flights over these sites. 

vJe had another meeting on the evening of 8th july when lrblt6ll told me what he 
had found out so far. Apparently no special flights are being done just to 
look at archl sites, instead they are usually combined with another 
mission, this is due to a shortage of flying machines. I take this to mean 
there is little chance of getting up in a helicopter. llh\IR\ I had found info 
about a recent FRAGO (fragmentary order) which added some sites to be 
watched to an original FRAGO. We don&#8217;t know what the original FRAGO 
was but the additions were : Isin, Fara, Umma, Larsa, Umm al Agarib, 
Bisrnaya, Nippur, and Abu Salabikh. I could not be given a ocpy of the FRAGO 
additions report as I have no security clearance but was able to hear which 
sites were involved. ltblt6l I said he 'oli'OUld try to find the original FRAGO. 

I don&lt8217it 
and l(b)(6) 

know what relation this is if any to the FRAGO that j(b)(3):10 US I 
I were organizing. 

l(b)(6) I was also able to give me the contact details of a number oE 
individuals associated "YTith the scheduling of UAVs & other flights and 
collecting the images taken by all flight varieties. So I can try these 
various people and see if I can get any further. 
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That&#8217;s it so far. 

l(b)(6) 

On Jul g 2003 , l(b)(3):10USC§130b I (Ministry of Culture) wrote: 

> l(b)(6) 
> 
> Do you know which archaeological sites that you have visited in your 
> region have Military security in addition to Babylon? The impression from 
> the military here is confused to say the least. The 1st frago was not a 
> success and a 2nd one with more political clout has been issued. 
> ~~~~~~~---, 
> (b)(3):10 usc §130b 
> 
> 
> t.,.P...,o'"l">.'""'c""'y----A;-d""'v--::-:r-1-=s--=-o-r____J 
> Ministry of Culture 
> CPA HQ 
> 
> 

~ ;~~~~~~i~jna1 Mesl7;:~~~~~~~(b~)~(6~)------------~ 
>> TSe

0
n:>;(b:)(

6
M)ondav. Julv 07, 2003 3:52PM 

~ !(Ministry of Culture} 
> Cc: wltb~· l~(6~l" ______________ ~I(Ministry of Culture) 
> Subject: RE: pay again etc 
> 
> Dear Ll(b_J(_6l ____ _.Jl 
> 
> While I was busy down in Nejef yesterday some of the museum staff went 
> to the treasury in Hillah and it seems that money for salaries has 
> arrived but that it is insufficient to pay everyone. There is some 
> confusion as to the audit committee too, the Marines seem to think the 
> audit committee is/should be l(b)(6) I but the audit committee 
> that went to the treasury was l(b)(6) I who 
> are presumably the committe chosen by the SBAH. We also heard that the 
> payroll list has arrived at the treasury also from Baghdad. ~l(b~J~(6~)--~~~ 
> and I are going to the treasury tomorrow to find out about the problem 
> with the money being insufficient to pay everyone. l(b)(6) !seems to 
> still think we need to put in a payroll list to the treasury, but as far 
> as I can see if the SBAH has already put a list into the treasury there 
> is no need for this. 
> 
> l(b)(6) ~ I did have the slight feeling that there might be a difference. 
> of 
> opinion as to l(b)(6J I position between the SBAH and the MEF (Marine 
> e::xpeditionary force}. (b)(6) has apparently seen the MEF plan for the 
> museum which lists b 6 and did not at 
> the time raise any objection (this is ace to l(b)(6)'- l. The MEF document says 
> they had agreed ltblt6l I appointment with the SBAH, but this may be news to 
> the SBAH. 
> 
> I am finding all this stuff very confusing. I think the presence of 
> the 
> Marines here and their involvement in the museum has led to a an extra 
> layer of confusion (although obviously that is not their intention) . 
> 
> l(bJ(6l I 
> On Jul 6 2003, wlfh.LLlfLLJRLLl ________ ___J (Ministry of Culture) wrote: 
> 
>· 
> > I'm trying to get an 'organogram' as l(b)(6) I calls it for the SBAH & 
> > the 
>>various museums etc., We want to know who is who and what are their job 
> >descriptions. I asked about Babylon and mentioned ~l(b~)~(6~) ______ ~1 and will 
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.~ 

> > give you more info in another email but accordina to l(b)(6l 
> > 
> >L(b.J_(6,l .. .---~----~----~is just a researcher and should not be making 
> > decisions down there. I shall find out more. 
> > 
> > 
> > 
> 
> 
> 
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j=1(b)=(6..---l _, --------,1 (Ministrx of Culture) 
221!1 

~~ 
From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc:.. 

Subject: 

Dear all, 

sunday 6th July 

i(b)(6) 

Sunda 
(b)(6) 

• • PM 

re ); I (b )(6) 

rf.::+~----'li..u..J...., 4 narines (the shooters we had to have) , l(b)(6) 
(b)(6) who drove the two vehi e as a'----=f_a_v_o_u_r--=-}-,-a-n-l..,-. n-t-e-rp_r_e-,-t_e_Jr 
and (b)(6) This was a somewhat· confusing 
trip. There are two different ways of getting around the landscape. 1. The 

KMinistry of 

military way with very detailed map and grid coordinates and planned routes 2. The Iraqi 
way, by knowing the land. These do not mix at all as the 
latter does not involve any sort of map, nor need it involve many place 
names. Under normal archaeological circs the latter way would work just 
fine, you just go where your guide takes you. However the military do not 
and WILL NOT do this instead they have to plan a route in advance and 
therefore need to know EXACTLY where they are going. As a result, although 
I had put a map in front of lt,Plt6l •• I the day before and read out lots of place 
names and he had confidently pointed at a number of places that the sites 
were near and we had planned a route accordingly. (This route ran SE from 
Nejef an~ south down the west bank of the Euphrates. ) The places 
named by ~as &#8216;near&#8217; the sites '"ere in general within 30 km 
and on the other siqe of the river. At the first point where the military 
route diverged from ~)(6) ~ I route and he said so, the military 
insisted on going the route that had been planned for security reasons i.e. 
they had told Ops they were going tha~ way and therefore that was the way 
they had to go. So we did the route to the furthest point without 
eGcountering any looted archaeological sites at all (not surprising as we 
were on the wrong side of the Euphrates) . It was only on the way back 
having crossed the river at ash Shenafiyah that we finally stumbled over 
somewhere that lfb\IR\ I recognized and then were able to find the areas he was 
talking about. None of these were very obvious tell sites, all were very 
l0\'1 lying. In fact, for the most part, if it were not for the busy looters 
and large holes it would be possible to go straight past such sites without 
noticing them at all. Also although 1iA11i!:1 ' 1 g.ive all the sites names, I got 
the impression that these were very general area designations rather than 
being the name of that exact part of the landscape. 

So having crossed the Euphrates from west to east at Shenafiyeh and 
traveled north east for a time and then taken a left and traveled NW past 
the left turn to Gharnmas, heading generally NE, roughly parallel with the 
Euphrates, we encountered an area on the left side of the road where 
numerous people were busy with shovels and ~here was also a stationary 
bulldozer. There were also a few people digging on the right side of the 
road. i(b)(6) I called this area &ltB220;al Assaya&#8221; (38 RMA 60897 15862). 
The major in charge of our convoy was not keen to have us get out of the 
vehicle so we made two slow passes and took photos from inside the vehicle 
with the windows closed. (I have to say I was using a videocamera that also 
does stills, but they are very poor quality and what with that and the 
moving vehicle, I am not sure that they are good enough to persuade people 
that what they depict is actual looting in progress. Also it was not 
possible to zoom in close enough and some of the figures in the pictures 
are rather remote.) 

We then continued NE up the east side of the Euphrates and then took a left 
turn and traveled SW towards the Euphrates and took another left off the 
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• zifit road and down a track roughly south, parallel with the Euphrates, but 
not quite in sight of it. This route was quite picturesque with reed huts 
and trees etc. We passed the area of the excavated site of Umm Kheshem (dug 
in the 1970s py the late Majid al Hadithal on our left and the looted area 
was further on at 38RMA 53344 27448, this more open area beyond the reed 
huts was heavily pitted with broken pottery. some of the robber holes had 
come down on rows of jars which had then been broken. we walked around the 
area a bit, but it was not possible at any of these sites to walk around 
enough to see the full extent of all the looting. To properly document the 
extent of the looting, the whole area between Nejef and Ghammas would need 
to be properly surveyed (it is probably around 40 km from N to G). 

After &H8216iUmm Kheshem&#8217; we made our way back to the zifit and took 
a left turn onto it and crossed the Euphrates to the west bank and turned 
NW and traveled through Abu Skrayr towards Nejef. It was on the left of 
this road at 38RMA 48117 32752 that we stopped at another area of extensive 
pitting and some clear use of a bulldozer. Again there was broken pottery 
and even one complete jar. One pit has a row of large stones that could 
have been the remains of a wall. The general looters approach is to dig a 
small circular pit about a foot across. then if anything of interest is 
found this is then expanded into something roughly the size of a grave, So 
you end up with lots of small circular pits and the occasional larger 
rectangular one. Some of the latter are quite large. All of these sites 
were Sasanian cemeteries according to our guide. It may be that some of the 
areas were not only cemeteries and the time span may be a little wider, but 
I think post-Hellenistic/pre-Islamic is a pretty good guess, not that there 
was a much diagnostic material. There was very little bone material around, 
certainly nothing that was definitely human, but possibly the rather sandy 
soil in these areas does not preserve bone well. 

I know that l(b)(6) I has already been to see the officer in charge in that 
area a l(b)(6) I who apparently considers any patrolling the buisness of 
the local police. Michael Gfoeller (the regional coordinator ie the top bod 
in CPA heartland) also said when he had discussed looting with l(b)(6) I 
that l(b)(6) I had said he was trying to get the police to deal with it. I 
could not tell you if the gov of Nejef has many, or indeed any, police at 
the moment. 

One last problem, lth\16\ I wanted me to visit the diraa/museum in Kufa on the 
way. The military were equally insistent that we do no such thing. We tad 
been told to stay out of the city of Nejef, including Kufa, as it is 
rega~ded as a slightly dicey area since Mike Gfoeller sacked the governor 
and arrested him for corruption. I am sure it was a faux pas not to visit 
but there was nothing I could do about it. I was also unable to tell ltbl(6l 
when I would be able to make such a visit as I can not be sure of getting 
that many vehicles or people together again. 

Summary 
Looted Sasanian sites, probably cemeteries 
Al Assaya NE of Gharomas Looters at work 
Umm Kheshem SE of Abu Skreyr Looters pits 
Abu Skreyr NE of Abu Skreyr Looters pits inc 

l(b )(6) 
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Cultural Heritage 

A Survey oflslamic Monuments in Baghdad after the ·war 

Starting the 201
h December 2003 and up to the 1oth of January 2004, a survey of the 

Islamic monuments in Baghdad was carried out by prof. Giovanni Curatola with the 
cooperation of four members ofthc SBAH (State Board of Antiquities and Heritage), 
namely Dr. Dahel Majhul, art historian, Mr. Haidar Farhan, art historian, Mr. Ala Husein, 
photographer and Mr. Abu Saad, driver. A list of about 20 monuments, ranging from a 
period including the Abbasid one (i.e. Xllth century) up to the late Ottoman period (i.e. 
XIXth century), bas been compiled. 
The following monuments have been visited and photographs of them have been taken. 
The total amount of photographs is slightly more than 400 (the exact amount being 411). 

Abbasid Palace 
Madrasa al-Mustansiriyya 
Madrasa al-Matjani 
Masj id al-Qaffafin 
Masj id al-Qamariya 
Masj id al-Khulafa (manar suq al-Ghazil) 
Masj id al-Ahmadiya 
Masj id al-Qadimiya 
Masjid al-Haidar Khan 
Masjid Siraj ad-Din 
Masj id 'Ali Efendi 
Masjid al-Ghailani (shrine Shaikh Abdul Kadir) 
Shrine of Shaikh Ornar Sukhrawardi 
Shrine of Zumurrud K.hatun 
Shrine of Shaikh Maruf (manar) 
Bab al-Wastani 
Khan al-Marj ani 
Khan Yasin al Khadeiri 
Hammam al Pasha 
Old Khan Entrance 
Ali Wali House 
AI Kishla complex 
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The conditions of the above mentioned montunents are generally fairy good, with the 
exceptions which are discussed below. 

The Abbasid Palace 
The so called Abbasid Palace (built by Sultan an~Nasir, L 180-1230) is one of the most 
famous Islamic monuments in Baghdad, and originally was prohahly a madrasa. Many 
restorations through the past and in the last century brought the structure to the present 
state. In the large central court is a big fountain in red porphidus which comes from 
Samarra. From the same site an important mihrab they has been recovered and rebuilt. In 
three little rooms on the right side of the court are many stucco panels coming from the 
German archaeological excavations at the beginning of the last century. 
Present conditions. 
All the wooden doors of the building have been looted together with all other futniture. 
Nowadays there are many instruments (lamps, clothes, furniture, artifacts, etc.) from a 
film set. On the outside there are few holes from bullets and black smoke traces from 
burning. The site is in good conditions and only needs a cleaning up, outside and inside. 

Shrine of Zumurrud Khatun 
The structures of the monument from an architectural point of view are in a good 
condition, although a more precise analysis is recommended. The doors have been broken 
and the surrounding old cemetery is in a rather poor condition and a cleaning up should 
be slartell. 

Hammam al-Pasha 
Only one room of what used to be an important hammam (Turkish bath) in one of the old 
quarters of Baghdad is still standing and has been transformed into a store. On the walls 
there are extensive cracks and a structural restoration is urgently needed. 

Masjid a1-Ghailani 
Although mainly a modem mosque, extensive restoration works are carried on in the 
present moment. 

Masjid al-Qadirniya 
Again work in progress ofthe ]eft side of the mausoleum and prayer hall is actually done. 
Also some side rooms with the charactetistic mirror mosaic decorations are currently 
under rebuilding. 

Ali Wali House and al-Kishla Complex 
These two places have suffered of an almost complete destruction (the first one) and 
pillaging and looting quite everything the second one. A close study of all the area and a 
master plan ofthe entire place are strongly suggested before starting any work of 
restoration or refurbishment. 

Bab al Wastan.i 
A reconstruction more than a restoration project is currently on its way. The all area will 
be organized as a park \vith a small new cafeteria. From the point of view of the 
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conservation too much work has already been done, but, on the other hand, if the area 
will be used as a family picnic spot, than the results are acceptable. On the right side of 
the Gate there are some empty fields in which some archaeological sounds are suggested 
to be done. 



Russell, John 

From: Ll(b_J(6_J -~--~l._l(b_J(2_J -----' 
Sent: Wednesday, October 15, 2003 5:54PM 

To: Russell, John 

Subject: FW: Work in Babylon 

~-~~rl~rJ, Me;~e-----
Sent: Wednesday, October 15, 2003 5·44 PM 
To: Cordone, Pierro;l!b)(@[ , , 1l(b)(2) 

Subject: Work in Babylon 

l ~b)(6) 

Project Director 
Babylon Archaeological Project 
Camp Babylon 

Dear Sires, 

~(b)(6)" l(b)(2) [C6)(6) 

Page 1 of 1 

jDoc. 56 

1 came down to Iraq following a kind invitation by Dyr. M. Gfoeller of the CPA, SC, to carry on an 
archaeological research in Babylon in closest possible cooperation with Iraqi Archaeologists 
representing the State Board of Antiquities and Heritage. 

During a visit paid toi!9J(6J • ,I of the CPA SC today, I was assured that the Chainnen of the 
State Board. has accepted the idea of joint Polish-haqi work in Babylon. Consequently, I plan to come to 
Baghdad at the beginning of the next week or even earlier, if possible (depending on the transport 
opportunities here in Babylon) to apply for a neccesary pennit to start a work. I think, nevertheless, that 
before my visit to the State Board I should get in touch with person from your office~ who has been 
overseeing this matter, and that the visit in the State Board of Antiquities should be paid by this peTson 
and myself together. 

It would be mostly welcomed if the person responsible contacts me adlbl!6l . . . lor 
send a message to J(b)(~) • I from whose computer I 
am sending this lettet as soon as possible. 

Looking forward to hear from you 
l!bJ(6J - I 

-------·-----·-----
Do you Yahoo!? 
JheNew YahQOLS.h9..RQjng- with improved product search 

10/15/2003 



Russell, John 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

l<b)(6) l(b)(2) ] 

Wednesday, October 15, 2003 12:~~(~bl(~6·\-'"l "-----,lrl(li:"b)m(2"'l ---,,,., = .---------, 
Osio, Mario B. (ITA); Russell, JohniL. ------·.l(b)(6l 
FW: Arrival of Polish Archaelolgists for Babylon 'L--- __J IL__ ___ ____.J . - -··-···---· - --·--·-· ·-·--· 

MOC, For your information. 

!Doc. 57 

ltblt6l ~ the individuals that I forwarded your email to are the new senior advisor, Amb Mario 
Bondioli Osio (Amb Cordone has departed) , Professor John Russel l. his new deputy (and 
archeologist) as well as our military person who watches out over SBAH, j(b)(6) I 
K~)(6) ~ Regards , l(b)(6) I 

;;~~~~~)Ml; naJ Me<:s::r~i~ ~0 :l(b)(6) ~""(b-,-,)('"2) __ ....., 

Sent: Wednesday, October 15, 2003 11:54 AM 
'l'o: l(b)(6) J l(b)(2) I Cordone, I? ierro; l.!:l(b~)(~6)'--------------____j 
Sub ject: Arrival of Polish Archaelolgists for Babylon 

Dear Ambassador Cordone e t a l., 

llbll6l I, the Polish project direct or for 
t he upcoming Babylon excavations, has arrived in 
a l -Hilla. He i s currentl y accompanied by one other archaeologist and 5 more are due to 
arr i ve on October 20. 

ae would like to meet with the SBAH as soon as 
possible to obtain written permission to conduct the 
dig, and to discuss the project with Iraqi experts . I 
believe he'll be in touch with you himself in the next 
day or t\170 when he gets access to email. 

Pleose let us know when it would be possible for him 
to come up and meet with you at CPA and with the SBAH . 

Thanks very much. 

l(b){6) I 

-----------
l<bl(6) I 
Governorate Coordinator 
Babil 
Thuraya 1!6)(2) .I 

Do you Yahoo!? 
The New Yahoo! Shopping - with improved produc t search http://shopping.yahoo.com 
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Cordone, Pierro 
··-·-·· ··-·-·· .. ··-·-·· ··-·· . . . . . . . . . . . . ·-·-·· .. -·-·-·· ··-·-·-·· ... .... . .. ··-·-·· .. . . . . . . . . . . . ... 

From: "-l(b-'-'l(-'-6) _______ ___, 
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Sent: Tuesday, September 09,2003 4:09PM 

To: l(b)(6l I 

9/10/2003 
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Republic of Iraq 
Ministry of Culture 
Baghdad 
State Boat·d of Antiquities and Heritage 
P .0 Box: 8056 
E-Mail: (bl(6l til (bl(2l 

No.4036 
Date:29-10-2003 

To I Ministry of Culture I Minister's office 
Sub I Babylon historical city 

Greetings ... 

We would like to infonn you that Babylon historical dty is suffering from the large 
shaking, resulting from the w andering of the big machines, tanks, and the landing and 
taking off the planes in the important areas of the city. Most of its buildings are built of 
mud, which will lead to its falling apart and all the civi lization features will be lost. It is 
the heritage ofthe humanity. We would like you to address the CPA in Babylon historical 
city to put an end for all these acts. In addition, to this to draw their attention not to harm 
the antiquities of the ancient city. 

With regards. 

l(b)(6) ij 
Head of the Board of Antiquities and Heritage 

Copy: 
The Head of the Board's office. 
Babylon Antiquities Directorate/ reference to your memorandum dates 25- I 0-
2003. 
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Osio, Mario B. (ITA) 
M;ro:~ '1b)(6j' ' "'" ,, ·- ..... . ,.. = ., = .- ''" •• ~ -·- . .. ~ .. ----... co ;;e&J o e < eo " oce __ ,._, 10-•• hO o .. - ... 

Sent: Monday, November 10, 2003 12:38 PM 

To: ~~)(6) I (").,;" Marto B. 
~~#T~At);- ~R~u~ss~e~II~Jl-o~h~n~:I(Wb)ffl(6~) --------~ •. ~-.. ~--~.--~ •• ~--.. m .. -~.-------.~-~_j~~ 
(OJIO) I 

Subject: Memo: Babylon Archaeological Project 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN 

Memo: Background and Perspectives of the Babylon Archaeological Project 

A proposition to carry out archaeological projects consisting of excavations at three sites located 
in the SC region of Iraq was launched by Mr Michael Gfoeller, Director of the CPA SC, and adressed to 
ambasador Bratkiewicz, the secretary of the Task Team for Iraq of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, 
Republic ! of Poland. In subsequent correspondence with l<bl(6) = !Director Gfoeller stated that the 
CPA wilJ run the project with a budget up to 100.000 US dollars which will be spent on the wages for 
Iraqi workers. aquisition of tools and technical equipment, accomodations and provisions for the Polish 
members of the tcam(lcttcr of September 4). He has also stated that a laboratory space for the needs of 
the mission will be prepared within the Babylon Museum. In the same letter Director Gfoeller infl 
onned me that the expenses of the Polish members of the team (travel costs, wages and insurance) could 
not be covered by the CPA The list of the sites under investigation was limited to Babylon only, for 
security reasons. 

The Polish side insisted on some changes in the original offer of Director Gfoeller. The most 
important one was to include into the project a survey of damages which the site of Babylon suffered 
during and after the war, when a military camp has been created in its central part along with 
preservation activities, should they tum out to be necessary. The second important issue was including 
Iraqi archaeologists into the project as an equal partner. To stress these two improvements, the Project 
has been dubbed "Babylon Archaeological Project" , avoiding usage of words l! ike ''excavations", as 
from the start it was intended to include other form of activities at the site, and "Polish", as it was 
considered an international project to be carried out jointly by Polish and Iraqi sciencists. The main idea 
behind the project was to combine experience of Iraqi archaeologists with up-to-date documentation 
standards provided by the .Polish side of the project to benefit fully from the technical means provided 
by the CPA. The concern ofboth CPA and Polish MFA was to start a civilian project which, besides 
allowing Iraqi collegues to return to the field work which had stopped stopped abruptly in Spring 2003, 
will provide local menpower 'vith the much needed employment opportunities for at least 80 people. 

The letter of Director Gfoeller quoted afforehand was grounds to apply for a financial support 
from the Polish MFA, to cover the expences of Polish members of the mission to Iraq which could not 
be paid by the CPA. This support was granted and I have been sent to Iraq via Kuweit accompanied by 
one of the mission members on October 9, and joined by the other members of the mission in Babylon 
on October 30. 

On arrival to Babylon on October 14, J was assured by the local authorities of the SBOAH that 
the site had sw-vived the war without any =age whatsoever. Therefore, when I outlined the research 
programme ofthe BAP in a letter to Late! ( l the Chairman ofthe SBOAH. on October 
18, the documentation and preservation work was not included in it. 'This programme was approved by 
j(b){6) ... ,, l Consequently, five Iraqi archaeologist were appointed to join the projec-t and workers 
recruited, though the work in the field did not start, because, on one hand, military authorities requested 
time to perform a security check on Iraqi colleagues and workers a! nd, on the other, CPA SC did not 
provided promised tools and equipment. 
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In the meantime discussions with the staff of the regional office of the SBAOH at Babylon, its 
Director, l(bJ(6l I and the staff of the Babylon Museum led me to reconsider the 
original project and put much more stress on protection of the surviving monuments and the site itself. 
The site, which had been extensively excavated in the early XXth century by Germans and later by the 
Iraqis, changed considerably since its topographical plan had been drawn, as a result of digging, 
reconstruction activities and site erosion. In consequence, the century old German contour plans hardly 
reflect the pt"escnt state of the site, especially in three much explored areas of Merkcz, Humara or Qasr. 
Moreover,! despite the introductory announcements of the members of the SBAOH staff, some harm has 
been done during the war and after it, when the military camp was established on part of the site. These 
damages need to be registred and site monitoring programme to avoid further destructions must be 
introduced. Finally, the Traqi colleagues have tumed my attention to the fact, that the entire field 
documentation of more than 30 years oflraqi excavations at the site was burned down when the 
Babylon Museum compound was looted. It is possible that copies of the original documentation exist in 
the central archive of the SBAOH in Baghdad, but as thelraqi&! nbsp; Museum and central office of the 
SBAOH were partly looted too, there is a serious risk that these copies were also destroyed. In this 
situation re-documenting the remnants still preserved witltin the trenches of recent Iraqi excavations 
seems to be a task of the highest priority. There is still a possibility to secure some infonnation while 
neglecting this opportunity will result in irreplacable lost ofthiese data, given the fast deterioration rate 
of excavated remains. 

In this situation I decided to -wTite a letter tol(bl(6l I requesting permission to change 
the agreed progranune of the first season's and con<:entrate our efforts on documentation work and a 
topographic survey of the site. Due to the sudden death ofl(b)(6J lthe letter was not 
delivered, but similar letter sugesting the same changes to the working plan was sent to m:llb"'J("'3J"":1o;;-r;u""'%C""§""1.,..30"',I 
the coordinator of the CPA SC for Babi1 province. 

In the meantime, legal issues were mised within CPA questioning legitimacy of the project, even 
though it had been launched on CPA's initiative. Being aware of international treaties concerning 
pmtect)on of cultural heritage during war time 1 stress that the Polish side ofthc project never meant to 
carry out illegal activities at Babylon, and that protection of the site and documentation of its remains 
have always been considered our primal concern. This concern was reflected in the correspondence with 
Director Gfocllcr, who had cnviscgcd the project as limited only to excavations. 

With a new perspective I reached after I got more familiar with the conditions at the site, it is 
obvious that documentation and protective work are the highest priority tasks at present. In 
consequence, I recommend following activities at the site: 

1. Carry out a topographical survey to register present conditions at the site. 
2. Register damages caused during and after war (when the site was open to looters), and after 

the military camp was established. 
3. Take protective measures in the areas )ike the Central Palace. frequented by trespassers fi·om 

the military camp, who despite prohibitive orders from the camp commander, as often as uot 
wander freely in the ruins, occasionally collecting inscribed bricks and sherds in the area of 
previous Iraqi dig. This part of the site needs to be enclosed entirely by a fence and this task 
may be pefonned using the manpower contracted originally for excavations. 

4. Clear away debris and trash amassed in the reconstructed buildings at the site during the 
period of abandonment. . 

5. Removing rubble and trash from the sectors excavated by Iraqis before the war as a 
preparation for the documentation work 

6. Replacing lost architectural documentation of the Iraqi sectors in places where remains are 
preserved well enough to be still registered. This activity has to be approved by the 
authorities of the SBAOH. 

The project, however, can not be started without the CPA's approval as the CPA, according to 
the original offer confirmed subsequently by Director Gfoeller on several occasions, is responsable for 
providing means to pay workers, buy tools needed to carry out the cleaning work, and technical 
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equipment necessary for docwnentation work. The delay in starting the project caused already a 

lot of much unwanted disappointment among Iraqi workers, who are waiting eagerly for employment. 
A1so the Iraqi archaeologists who were chosen to cooperate are upset by the delay of the start of work, 
which, in their perspective, has been fully approved by the Iraqi authorities (SBOAH). Finally, Polish 
members of the team are also ready to act, once the financi! a1 support to the project will be provided. 

I hope that this memo, intended to explain the background ofthe Babylon Archaeological 
Project, will clear Potential misunderstendings concenUng Polish position toward the Babylon 
Archaeological Project cleared. I feel deply convinced that archaeological and protective work is much 
needed at Babylon in this moment. Of course, many more sites need immediate protection and 
archaeological research but it is also important to start archaeological work as soon as possible, that is in 
places where there are security conditions to work and not wait for the normalization of! situation in 
Iraq which surely come in a due time. 

[(b)(6) 
Camp Babylon, November 8, 2003 

Project Director 
Babylon Archaeological Project 

PS.l Dear Dr.l(bJ(6J 

I will be very gratful if you can pass a copy of this memo to c:.l(b-'-'J(c....:6l __________ ...,. .. _ ____Jl I 

hope to come to Baghdad this week, but I am still unable to give you the exact day. 

PS.2 Do osob mowiacych po pols.ku: 

Przepraszam, ze memo napisane jest po angielsku, ale chodzilo mi oto by kazdy z zainteresowanych 

otrzymal dokladnie ten sam tekst. 

Greetings/Pozdrowienia 

l(b)(6) 

~------~-------------·-·--- ---------------
Want to chat instantly with your online friends? .G.~t the FREE Yahoo! Mes~~-r.!ger 
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COALITION PRO~lSIONALAUTHORITY ORDER NUMBER 16 (REVISED) 

TElVIPOR~Y CONTROL OF IRAQI BORDERS, PORTS AND AIRPORTS 

IDoc. 61 

Pm'SlUlTtt to Jl¥ authority as AchninistJator of the Coalition Provisional Authority (CPA) 
and 1mder the laws and usages of war, and com;istent with relevant U .N, Secmit:y Cmmcil 
Resolution<:;, inducting Resolution 1483 (2003) and Resolution 1511 (2003 ), 

Recoguizi11g that it is desirable as soon as, possible to restore dle nom1al tt'llmit and 
movement of people to and :liom Iraq. 

Ackno·wledging that the Iraqi laws on innnigrat.ion, cu-.:tont':l and quarantine should remain 
in place wlle~~ exceptions prove neces~ary for security reasons or otherwise to 
accomplish the obligations of the CPA 1mder the laws and usages of war, 

Recoguizi11g that etiective export and border controls are essential to prevent the 
(lrotiferation of w~'lllon~ of mass destruction, their delivery systems, advanced 
conventional w~l(lons and related technologies, 

Noti11g that the current security situation in Iraq does not llemlit the muestlicted 
resumption ofn.ormal trmt'lit and movement, 

I hereby promulgate dle following: 

Section 1 
Definitions 

l) ''Autho1=ized officer" means any Coalition personnel or Irafj official designatedbythe 
CPA to perfbnn border control, customs, immigration, consular or quarantine 

• serv1ces. 

2) "Coalition persmmel" means ~111 non-Iraqi militmy and civilian personnel 1mder the 
authority of the Coalition Forces Conm1ander, as well as all non-Iraqi military and 
civilian persmmel assigned to. or under the direction or control of, the Administrator 
ofthe CPA. 

3) "Designated travel permit issuing authority" m~ms (a) :tvlinistly of lnterior offices 
and, if any, Ministry of Foreign Affairs offices de~ignatedby the Interim lVfini~ier of 
Interior m Detmty Interim :tvlinister of Interim to issue inte1im trave.l docmnents and 
to extend Iraqi passports; (b) any Iraqi mission located outside Iraq designated by the 
Inte1im Minister of Foreign Affairs (I' the Director of Consular Affairs to issue ..... 
interim travel documents ::md to extend Iraqi (laS~Jlorts in addition to issuing 
diplomatic <md official passports. 
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4) /{GoodS11 means my commodity, substance, organism, article, docmnent, data or 
thing, whether manufactured or mltuml, including my Controlled Item~ that may be 
moved aero~~ the borders of Iraq. ¢'Goodsu does nut include human bodies, cadavers 
or human •·emain~. 

5) "i~fentber of a crew" means a 1)erso~ including a master, who is employed on a 
vehicle to perfonn duties during a voyage Qr nip related to the operation of the 
vehicle or the provision of services to passengers. 

6) "Controlled Item·· means 31\Y item contained in the controllists ofthe lVlissile 
Technology Control Regime} the Au..;;tralia Group, the Nuclear Suppliers C'Jfoup, the 
Zangger Conmtittee or the Wassenaar Anangementor any other docmnents, system~, 
components, materi~1l~,software or technology that may be intended to contribute to 
the acquisition,manufactme, development, research or transfer ofWeapons of:Mass 
Destmction, their delivery systems or advanced conventional military systems. 
~'Technologi' includes information necessary for the design, development, 
production, or use of a control1ed commodity or software. 

7) '7errorism '' ueans the use or tlneatened usc of unlawful violence again~1: civilians, 
noncombatants, or other irmocents, cllculated tQ cause fear or to coerce or intimidate 
governments or societies, and motivated by political, religious, or ideological goals. 

8) u Terrorist organi:;atiou'' means an organization whose ol~iective is to suppmt or 
conunit acts of terrorism, directly or inclirectly, physically or financially. 

9) "Transportation comptmy H is any corporation, enterprise or other entity transporting 
persons to h·aq. 

10) "Travel documents'~ mean~ documents required by the CPA far entry into and exit 
fi:om Iraq, These may include: a) an Iraqi l)aSSl)Ortvalid on its face or vvhich has had 
its validity e:\.tended consistentw ith thi~ Order, b) a CPA Interim Travel Document 
(lTD)) c) a document or< document~pro'\'ing Iraqi m11ionality(:includingan Iraqi 
Nationality Card) for return to Iraq, d) a travel permit issued by an authorized officer 
as defined by this Order, or e) a document issued by a foreign government or an 
international organization, such as the United Nations High Ctlmmis.<:>ion tor Refugees ._. ._. ._. 

or the International Committee of the Red Cross identifying the person as a refugee 
from Imq. 

11) "Travel permit" means a permit t<J enter Iraq issued pursuant to Section 5 of this 
Order. 

12) '(Ve~icle ·~means any conveyance that may be used f(l· transportation by l~1nd, water 
or au. 
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13) "Weapons ctMass Destruction "means nuclear,biological, or chemical weapons. 

Section 2 
Preservation of Laws 

1) All h~aqi laws regarding inu:nigration, emigration, c;:ust_oms and quarantine shaH 
remmn tn force unless spec1ficallysu~pended by tlus Order. 

2) \v'herever a ~1ipulation or provision ofthis Order or any other CPA Regulation, Onlet· 
or :tvlemoranchun conflicts with a current provision of Iraqi inunigration, emigration, 
customs and quarantine laws, the sti1)ulation or provision contained in such 
Regulation, Order or Memoranchun shall pre"\-"~liL 

3) The edict ofthe fanner President SacklamHl.lss.ein regardingthe expiration of .. Nu 
series passports issued dming the y~ll'S 1996 to 2002, fixing dteir e:\.-pn·ation in the 
year 2003, is hereby sus1)ended.AII '~~and '~M .. series passports will continue m 
effect fordten·statutory dmation. 

4) All Iraqi 1)ass1JOrts that h~1ve expired since June 27, 1999, or \vill expire before 
January 1,2004 for the exclusive pmpose of directrehm1 travel to Iraq, will be 
deemed valid until December 31,2003, with such travel to be completed by 
December 31, 2003. Such a passport will not be considered valid far any other 
purpose. 

5) All Iraqi 1)ass1JOrts :in the "N~J and "Mu series may be extended by any designated 
n·avel pe1n1it i~suing authority. Passports presented to a de.~ignated n·avel1)ermit 
issuing antho1ity for extension on or before their miginal ex1liration date or within the 
two months inmtediately following dteir original e:\.-pn·ation elate may be extended for 
a period of 4 years. Passports presented to a designated travel permit i~suing 
authority for extension after the two months foUowing their original e:\.-piration date 
nblY be e:\.iended for a period of 2 years. Any passport pmporting to have been issued 
after Jv1arch 19,2003 that does not bear a CPA/Ministry of Foreign Affah·s stamp 
and/ot a CPA/Ministry of Interior stamp, as appropriate, is invalid. Any Iraqi 
l)aSSl)Ort valid under tllis Order may be amended by any authorized officer at an ln1qi 
mission overseas to regi~ter a child born on or after Janmuy 1,200 1, o.n dte passport 
of a 1)arent, gmudian, or legal trustee, in acc01·dance with e~tabli~hed Iraqi law and 
procedures. 

6) Consistent \V:dh Section2 of CPA Order No. 26 (CPAiORD/24 August2003/26),1he 
:Minis try ofF oreign Affairs has the author~ to gnmt, issue, renew, extend or amend 
diplomatic and service passpor1s in accordance withes t.ablished 1)rocedure.~ and for 
the ()ur()Ose of facilitating offici~1l travel oflraqi officials. As ofJanumy 1,2004, all 
diplomatic ani sei"\-ice l)aSSl)OI't~ 1hat do not have a CPA/Ministry ofF oreign Affairs 
stamp either to retl ect i~suance, renewal, exten~ion or validation., .are declared invalid 
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far travel except for direct return travel tu haq. Such passports may be confi.;;cated by 
any ~mthmized officer or any audull·ized representative of the lV.Iinistry of Foreign 
Affairs. 

Section3 
Right ]i) EX it 

1) Subject to comllliance with Iraqi law and with border control procedme.~ e~1ablished 
from time to time by the CPA, all person~ may exit from Iraq, pm"ided they are in 
llossession of travel document~ and are not sul~iect to any 1J·avel restrictions under 
applicable law including this Order. 

2) The fallowing person.;; shall •·equire Sllecial clearance to exit Iraq 
llrevented ftom exiting at the discretion o Hhe Ministry ofthe lntetim: 

and mav be • 

a) Seniorregimeor military leadership and Senior Party lVIembers or officeholdet·s 
ofth e Baath Party, as described in CP A/OR.D/16 lVlay 2003/01; 

b) Persons suspected of having connnitted sel'iou~ ct·imes; 

c) Personswha are known or are su~1)ected to h~we Jinks to a terrorist organization or 
who are su.;;pected to have connnitted or to have llro"ided financial, material, or 
teclmological suppol1: for acts oftetTo.ris.rn; and 

d) Persons suspected of being involved or attempting to be involved with the 
acquisition, manufacture, development, research, or tran\fer of technology or 

• 
mate~ial related to Weapons of JVlass Destruction or their delivery systems~ or 
having knowledge of the location. of \Veapons of :tvlass De.~tl'uction or their 
delivery systems, or the identity of pel'son~ with such knowledge. 

Section4 
Examinations for Entry 

1) Sul~iect to the l)l'esent Order, a ()er~'On seeking entry to Iraq shall appear before an 
authorized officer at a pmt of entl'y, border control station or at such other place as 
mav be designated bv the Ministlv of the Interior for examination to determine .. · ._. .. ..· 

whe1her the llel'son may be granted ently to Irnq. 

2) A person appeming for examination shaD answer truthfully all questions put to thtt 
person and shall produce such documentation as may be required for the puipOse of 
e~1abli~hing vvhether the llerson may be granted enhy. 

3) A person may be detained for further eDlmination upon ently and/or pending 
arrangements for his or her removal, 
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SectionS 
Permit~) to Enter Iraq 

1) Persons seeldng enny to h~-.q are to be classified as either pel'son~ vvho •·equire pen nits 
granting ently into Iraq (hereinafter "permits") or persons who do not require such 
permits. All1-.ersons who are not li~ted in Sections 5(2) or 5(3) of this Order require 
pennits. Aufhmizedofficcrs shallissnepennitsvalid forup to90 days, in accordance 
with thi~ Order and with applicable law. 

2) Persons not n~quning permits to enta- fu1q are all those ller~'On~ nut otherwi<.>e denied 
pemtits under thi~ Order vvho are a) citizens of Iraq orpersom; who were bom in mtq, 
b) Cm11ition personnel, c) United Nations officials or any official of any other UN 
organization, and d) documented members of seagoing shil)S' com1lanies dming the 
stay of a ship in m-.qi waters, or e) documented members of airship companies dming 
the stay of the aircraft in Iraqi tenito1y. Persons requiring pem1its are all persons who 
are not listed in t hi s Section 5. :2. 

3) Persons seeking. en:tly into Iraq far tourism purposes require only those docmnents 
directed in \Vliting bv the CPA for such limited-dmation visit~ . ._. -· 

4) Permits may be obtained and issued fiom any Iraqi missions or embassies that have 
reopenecJ, and from CPA offices established fm· tllis 1mq)ose within Iraq and at 
authorized ports of entry. 

Section 6 
Powers of an Authorized Officer 

1) An authorized officer who receives an application for a pem1it: shall eithel' approve or 
refuse- the application, and shall notify the applicant of the decision. At any time after 
an application for a permit i~ a1)1)rovul, dle authorizedoff:teer may: 

a) Alter liT revoke any tenns and conditions subject to which the person was gmnted 
entrv· 

"' 
b) Add term~ and conditions as presaibed by 1he present Order and other CFA 

Regulations, Orders or Memoranda; and/or 

c) Extend the permit. 
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2) St1~iect to the (lresent Qrder, a visitor seeking an extension of a permit shall ~1ppeu 
before an authorized officer at such place as may be designated by the Jvlinishy of dte 
Intelim f01· examination to determine whether dte visitor may be granted an exten~ion 
of a permit. 

3) A visitor appearing for examination shall answer truthfully all question') put to that 
visitor and shall produce such docmnentation as may be rEquired far the pmpose of 
establish in~ whether the visitor m~1y be granted an extension of a permit. 

Section 7 
Persons \Vho lVIay be Denied Entry to Iraq 

1) An authorized officer \Vho receives m1 application fora permit may refuse the 
application if the authorized officer has reasonable grotmd<:> to believe dt~1t the 
applicant 

a) knowingly provided any false, misleading, or inaccmateinfonnation in th~ comse 
of the application process; 

b) is suffering from any serious conummicabled.isease, or i~ suffering from any 
disorder, disability or other health in•p~1nn1ent fm· which conunercialhealtl1 
se.f\i.ces ~-.-e not readily available in b·aq; 

c) \vill be unable or 1mwilling to support herself or himself,. and those persons who 
are dependent on the applicant~ 

d) i-: or Vvas a member ofa criminal organization; 
I 

e) will conmlit offenses, or engage in criminal activity planned and organized by 
persons acting in conce1t with or in furtherance ofdte conunission of any offense~ 

f) will engage :in or has engaged in an act of terrorism, or is a member of a terrorist 
organization or an organization that there are reasonable grounds to believe will; 

i) engage in act<:> \vhich are offensive to the principles of democratic govenunent, 
institutions or (lrocesses in Iraq~ or 

ii) engage in or instigate the removal by force of any government~ 

g) will engage in acts of violence th:'lt may endanger the lives or safety of persons in 
ln1q, or who is a member of an o1ganization that engages in such acts~ 

~) has been involved or attempted to be involved with the acqui~ition, manufactme, 
development, research or transfer of teclmology or material related to "\Veapons ~1f 
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lV.Iass Destrllction, their delive1y systems, 
systems, including dual u~ item~; 

or advanced conventional militmv 

- ~. 

i) has committed acts or omissions th~lt constituted a war crime or ~l crime again~t 
hwuanity; or 

j) has previously been deported from, or denied entry to, Iraq by the CPA, or an 
international territorv wifu border control formalities . 

• 

• 

2) In the case of a person i~ in ()Ossession of a valid travel document, ~who Ca'l 

otherwise e~tabli~h Iraqi nationality, his or her enhy into h·aq shaH not be denied; 
however, if security or military necessity requires, such a person m~1y be detained 
upon entry into Iraq~ 

3) A person denied entryWlflet· this Order may appeal to the lVfini~tryofthe Interior for a 
re"iew ofthe case. The detennination ofthe Jvlinistrv ofthe Interior will be final • 

Section 8 
Notice to Depat1 

• 

1) Where an authorized officer, upon examination of a person, is of the O()inion. that it 
would be contrary to dte ()resent Order to grant entry to the person, or to extend the 
permit of a (lE~rson, the authorized officer m~1y, as appropriate: 

a) allow that person to leave Iraq in1medn1tely; and/or 

b) serve. that person with a Notice to Depart (hereinafter ''Notice .. ) within a specified 
period 

2) A Notice mu\tspecify: 

a) that the person mu\t depart Iraq \vithin a specified period; 

b) dte t·easons why the Notice is being served; 

c) that the person may ol~iect to the Notice in writing to the Jvlinishy ofthe Interior 
within a specified time, or give reason~ why the Notice should not remain in fm·ce; 
and 

d) that timely compliance \\-ill not have adverse consequences tor the retmn of a 
person who othetwise complies with ently requirement~. 

3) \Vhere dte lV.Iini~tryofthe Interior receives written abjections :from a (Jersom.mder 
this Order, the lvlinistly of the Interior shall: 
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a) con~ider such w1itten objections promptly; 

b) ()rOm()tly determine the fair and hl\vful resolution of the matter; and 

c) ad'\'isethe person in writing of the decision. 

Section9 
Revocation of a Permit 

An ~1uthorized officer may revoke aperson1s ()ermitif: 

a) the circum~tances that formed the basi~ of the approval ofthe person's application 
for the ()ermitno lon.ge.r exid; 

b) the person breache.~ a ()rescribedterm of the permit, or mother ()erson required to 
complyvvith a condition of the permit has not met that condition; 

c) the ()resence of the person in Iraq is, or would be, a risk to the health, safety or 
guod order of the Iraqi conmmni(Y; or 

d) the permit should not have been granted becau~e the app6cation fi.u 1he pennit was 
:in contravention of the ()re.~ent 0Idet· or other applicable law. 

Section JO 
Identification and Seizure of Documents 

1) Persons shall comply with the instmctions of an authorized officer regarding their 
identification a) if they seek ently into Iraq, b) if they nhlke an application for the 
renewal of a pe1n1it, c) if they have been anestecl o· d) if they are subject to 
deportation lmder tlus Order. 

2) Far the purpose of identification, an authorized officermay: 

a) search persons who the authorized officer believes either have not revealed their 
identity or have hidden on or about 1heh· person documents that are relevant to ~l 
decision as to vvhether they may be granted ()ermi~sion tu enter ln1q, and may 
search any vehicle that conveyed the ()ersons to Iraq and their lug._2:age and 
personal effects; 

b) search ()ersons who the authorized officerTeasonably believes have committed an 
offense or are in possession of docmnents that may be u-;ed in the commiss-ion of 
an offense, and may search any vehicle that conveyed the l)er~'On to Iraq and their 
luggage and persom1l effects~ 
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c) examine any travel document or any other document pwpm1ing to be a travel 
docmnent at a 1•ort of enny or any other place in lr~1q, fm· the llUI'llose ofdti~ Order 
01· relevant directives, examine any object h1t is, or is about to be, imported into 
or exported :from Iraq, 

3) An authorized officer may seize and hold at a port of entry or any other place in Iraq 
any object or document if dte authorized officer reasom1bly deems thi~ necessary far 
the di~chm-ge ofthe functions of the officer under this Order. 

4) An authorized officer may seize and hold any ol~iect or docmnent if the officer 
reasonably believes that it has been. fraudulently or improperly obtained or used, or 
that such ac1ion is necessary tu prevent its fraudulent or improper use. 

5) An authorized officer shall pro\'ide il written receipttu cny indh:idual from -vvhom he 
seizes an objector doctm1ent 1mder thi~ Onler. 

Sectionll 
Search of a Person 

1) An authorized officer may, widtout a warrant, search a person who seek~ at:ty to 
Iraq. 

2) Tite search of a person must be made by an authorized officer pmsuant to the present 
Order and must be made on reasonable grmmch>. ..... 

3) No 1•erson shall normally be sem-ched by a person who is not of the same sex, ~md if 
dtere i~ no officer of the same sex at the place at which the smrch is tO take lllace, an 
authorized officer may requestthat <mother border control or customs employee oft he 
same sex perform the search, whennecessmy to comply with this provision. 

Sectionl2 
Search and Seizure of Goods 

1) An authorized officer m~1y, without a warrant, search dte vehicle, luggage or personal 
effects of any 1•erson who seeks entlyinto lr~1q. 

2) Persons crossing the borders oflra.q must make decla:mtions or manifest~ of all goods 
being carried by the person ~lVailable to an ~1uthorized officer an request 

3) An authorized officer shall confiscate any goods that may pose a dtreat to the peace, 
secmity, health, en\'ironment, or. good order of Iraq, including Controlled Item~. 
Authorized officers also shall confi~'Cate ai\Y antiquities or cultmal items suspected of 
being illegally exported. 
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4) The export or import of a ContrQl.led item shall require the prior written authorization 
of the Admnmimtor, or his designee. Such prior written audtorizauon requirement 
shall nut apply to extJorts of Controlled Item~ by the CPA or Coalition personnel. 
Such tlrior written authorization requirement shall also not apply to exports of 
Controlled Itms by Coalition contractors? as defined in Section l ( 5) of CPA Order 
No. 16~ provided? however, that the contractor mu~i be exporting such Controlled 
Items in cmmection with the perfonnance of its contract with the Coalition. 

5) Goods that are not declared may be confiscated by an authorized officer. Persons 
may also be ordered tu return such good<.>? at their extlense, to the jmisdiction fi:om 
which thev came . • 

6) Any goods confiscated mu~i be innnediately handed over tu the Jvlinistly of the 
Interior or to his or her delegate(s)~ and a receipt must be i'!sued tu the person fi-cm 
whom the goods are confiscated . ..... 

Section 13 
Offenses 

1) Allegations of an offense shaD be su~ect to re'\'iew and action, if appropriate~ by an 
investigative judge of a customs court of Iraq 01' a criminal court of Iraq, as 
appropriate to the alleged otlense. 

2) The following shalt constitute an offense 1mder this Order: 

a) f~1iling to appear before an authorized officer for examim1tion as required by tlns 
Order~ 

b) failing to answer truthfuHy all questions by an authorized officer during 
exam:inat.ion: • 

c) knowingly concealing documentation as may be required by dle authorized officer 
dming examina-tion; 

d) failing to make a declaration or manifest of ~-.n goods being carried by the llerson 
on request by an authorized officer~ 

c} fa.iling to cooperate vvith a search ofthe person <1· search of the person's vehicle? 
luggage or personal effects pursuant to dli~ Order; 

f) knowingly mak:ing a false representation, orally or in writing? to an authorized 
officer for the llDrllose.~ of securing entry of a person into Iraqi 

g) entering Iraq or remaining in Iraq vvithont a permit? if one is req1nred~ 
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h) ente1ing Iraq or remaining in h·aq by use of a false or impmpel'ly obtained n·avel 
docwnent or other docmnent pertaining to the entry of that ()erson or by te.ason of 
any fraudulent a· improper mean.<.> or mi~representation ofm y matel'ial f~-.ct; 

i) failing to comJ)Iywith a prescribed term of a permit; 

j) esc~1ping or attempting to escape from lawful cu~tody a· detention under the 
()resent Onler and relevant directives; 

k) m·ganizingor facilitatingthe ent1y01· proposed ent1yinto lr~1q of a person~ 
knowing the person would, upon entering Iraq, be guilty of an offense 1mder tllis 
Section~ or 

. 
1) seeking to expol't or import, or exporting or importing Controlled Items without 

()rior authorization i~sued pusmnt to SectiQn 12( 4) of this Order. 

Section 14 
Penalties 

A person who commit~ an offense described .in this Order i"i liable to have any goods 
in hi~ ()t' h.er possession confiscated and may be dep01·ted from Iraq. The person m~1y 
also be liable to a penalty Jlrescribefl in an applicable Iraqi law or CPA Onler, 
Regulation or other directive. 

Sectionl5 
Liability for Removal Costs 

1) A tran\tlortation company shall ensure &tt 

a) the persons it conveys ta Iraq are in JlOssession of all travel docmnents required by 
aJlJllicable law, 

b) it presents each person to an authorized o:fficer for examination at such place as 
may be desigm1ted by an authorized officer upon arrival of each one of its vehicles 
in Iraq, and 

c) no other person leaves the vehicle i) at any place other than dlat designated by an 
authorized officer, or ii) untilJlermi~sion has been granted by an authorized 
officer. 

2) \\ltere a ()erson has been allowed or required to leave Iraq pmsuant to tllis Order, a 
transportation company that has conveyed the ))er!;'On to Iraq may be required by an 
authorized officer to cause that person to be conveyed to the country from vvhich dlat 
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person came, or to such other country as the authorized officer may approve at the 
requ~1: of the company. 

3) Where a llerson has been requil'ed to leave Iraq becau~e at the time of the arrival in 
lnlq the person was not in llossession of a valid travel dacmnent requil'ed by 
applicable law, a transportation company that has conveyed the person to lnl«J shall be 
liable tu 1)ay all costs of conveying that person to the cmmtly from which that person 
came, or to such oilier cmmtry as an authorized officer may allllrove at the reque.st of 
the company. 

4) \Vhere a perscn has been granted en:hy to Iraq~ or where that person, at the time of 
a11n11l in lnlq, was in possession of a valid n·avel document, and where that person is 
required to leave h·aq plll'~U~lnt tu the pre.~ent Order, a trans1Jortttioncompany that has 
conveyed the person to Iraq and that is required to cause that l)el'Son to be conveyed 
from ll'~l«J is entitled to be reimbm'Sed by the lVfinMry of the lnteri.or for the cost<:> of 
conveying that llel'Son fi:om Iraq. However a tran~portntion comp~1ny shall not be 
reimbmsed f01· the costs of conveying from Iraq ~l llerson who enters Iraq as, or tu 
become n meniber of a crew 

? ' 

5) Where a llerson enters Iraq as, or to become, a member of a crew of a vehicle and 
ceases to be a visitor, the tranS])Ortttion company iliat operates that vehicle. may be 
required to cause iliat person to be conveyed to the country fi:om which that1Jerson 
carre, or to such other country as the Jv1inistly of the Interior may allllrove at the 
reque.s1:ofthe company. The transportation company shall be liable to (lay all costs of 
conveyingthatperson from lr~lq, 

• Section 16 
Other Offenses 

• 

1) Where an authol'ized officer has reasonable ground~ to believeth1taperson \Vho 
seeks entry to or exit from ll'aq, or who seek~ to remain :h ll'~l«J, is liable far an offense 
committed under applicable law in Iraq, other than an offense pre.~1ibed in tllis 
On:ler, the mtthorized officer shall report the matter inunediatelyto security forces, 
who may take such action as they deem allllrOllriate. 

2) Where ilie circmnstances of the case require, an authorized officer may ane.st a person 
sus1Jected of having conmtitted an offense oilier than an offem;e pre.~cribed m this 
Order. The anestmu\1:be immediately reported to the Interim Mi1Iister of the Interior, 
and them-rested person mu~t,as soon as l)Ossible but no later than sixhoms after ilie 
arrest, be delivered into the cu~tofly of security forces. 

Section 17 
Review 
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1) A person ag~lin~1:whom an adverse decio;;ion has been m~1de by an authorized officer 
under thi~ Order may apply in writing to the lVfinidry of the Interior for a re'\'iew of 
the deci~ion. Within seven days of receipt of the application, the Ministry ofthe 
Interior slli1D re'\'iew the decision ~md notifY the 3()()1icant of the detennination. 

2) A person whose gods have been confisc,ltedmay a()()ly in \\1iting, with a copy of 1he 
confiscation receipt attached, to the lVfinistry of Interior for a I'e'\'iew of the deci~ion. 
W i t h seven days of recei()t ofthe 3()()1ication, the Jvlinistly oflnterior sru1D review 
the deci'.>ionand notifY the applicant of 1he determination. 

3) 'The lVfini~tryoflnterior may i~sue Admini\1:rative Instructions il connection v..-i.th 
such reviews. 

Section 18 
Entry into Force 

'Ibis Order shall enter into force on the date of signature. 
!? 

. IV\.- t L. J ' (' L 0 'l 

L. Paul Bremer, Administrator 
Coalition Pro'\'isiom1l Authority 

• 
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FOR: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

COALITION PROVISIONAL AUTHORITY 

BAGHDAD 

ACTION MEMO 

Jtme 9,2004 

THE ADMINISTRA. TOR 

"" John Russell, Senior Advisor for C\tltme I r=r 
Restoring Babylon 

The removal of the Co:.1lition militmy camp fi:om the archaeological site of Babylon will require 
c:.1refi:tl supervision by Iraqi archaeologists in order to limit fiuther damage to the site. Following 
the evacuation of the c:.1mp, a plan must be :implemented with Coalition Forces to protect fhe site 
from looters and vandals. 

On.hme 9, I met with representatives ofthe State Board of Antiquities and Heritage (SBAH) to 
discuss the removal offhe Coalition cam from Babvlon. Present were Director General for 
Excav:.1tions and Investigations (b 6l • . or General for Musemns Dr. Donnv 
George, and CPA Advis~r to fhe SBAH (b)(BJ The following points were • 
determined to be essential: 

(b)(5) 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the above steps to protect the site ofBabylon dming and 
afler the removal ofthe militmy camp. 

Approve:. ___ _ Disapprove: ---- Approve with modification: __ _ 

UN CLASSIFIED 

B(S) 
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Castle, Edwin (CIV) 

From: '-l(b_J(6_J ____ __, 

Sent: Wednesday, June 09,200411:21 AM 

To: Castle, Edwin (CIV \ ..,_l(b_,_,_J(6..;..] ____ ____, 

Subject: Camp Alpha 

~-~ Military (Polish) and contractor activities have resulted in archeological damage at 
Camp Alpha (also known locally as Camp Babylon) located two miles west of Hillah. A few 
weeks ago Amb Bremer asked MNC-1 to stop all movements of earth or any other activities 
that might cause further damage. MNF-1 issued a FRAGO to this effect, except for those 
activities required for force protection. 

A team which visited the site this week noted that extensive contractor activity, including the 
movement of earth, continues. There is confusion who these contractors are, who they 
work for, whether the Poles can direct them to stop, etc. This is a very large base with a lot 
go1ng on. 

(b)(5) 

Also, just so you are aware, he also just verbally ordered MNF-1 to relocate the entire base 
and wants to see their plan tomorrow morning. 
vrl(b)( I 

6 .9 "1( . . !. ! ""' )04 
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l(b)(6) 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

cc: 

......... 

Denham, Giles (CIV) 

Wednesday, June 23,2004 8:41 AM 

Executive Secretary 

llb)(6) I (CIV) 

Subject: RE: Review of Babylon MOU 

Page 1 of 1 
~ 
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In my view, '-Nith just a 'vVeek to sovereignty and a Ministry of Culture which has already transitioned, the MOU 
should be between MNC-1 and theiiG ratherthan rushed through CPA. The alternative is for the Ministry of 
Culture to have the chance to comment before anyone signs it for CPA. but in practice that will push any signing 
beyond June 30. 

MW advice would be for llbJ(6J I to make contact '-Nith the Deputy MinisteFor Cult4.!:_C in the fiJst instance. She is 
llb_6l , I al Damluji and can be reached atllbJ(2J pr email: !bl(6J ~(b)(2J _ 

Giles Denham 
Director Civil Affairs 
Coalition Provisional Authority Baghdad 
Roo 
cell :'~(b!:-+Jli\!i2l~--------, 
DSN . 
CIV: ...__ _____ ___, 

----Original Message---
From: 1(b)(5J I (CIV) On Behalf Of Executive Secretary 
Sent: Wednesday, June 23, 2004 8:29 AM 
To: Denham, Giles (CIV) 
Cc: ExecutiveSecretary; m:llb:vJ(""6J----,I (CIV) 
Subject: Review of Babylon M 0 U 
Importance: High 

~~ F-1 has sent a proposed MOU on the l(b ll6l I Since 'liVe 
understand the Office of the Senior Advisor for Culture is temporarily unmanned, we'd like you to review 
the document for CPA. This is time sensitive and we need your inputs, if any, today. Copies ofthe MOU 
have been placed in the Civil Affairs and Culture mailboxes in Exec Sec. 

\lr 
l(b)(6) 

Action Officer 
Executive Secretariat 

6 '"13 '"1(. 4 . j _..._ i .... )()! 
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REP\.YTC 
A TTI;NT!CN OF 

HEADQUARTERS 
MULTI-NATIONAL CORPS· IRAQ 

BAGHDAD, IRAQ 
APO AE09342 

MEMORANDUM THROUGH Staff J 
APOAE 09342 

Chief of Staff, Multi-National Force -Iraq, Baghdad, Iraq, APO AE 09 

640f.o22-09 

16 June 2004 

FOR Ambassador Jones, Deputy Administrator, Coalition Provisional Authority, Iraq 

SUBJECT: Proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the U!Hb<.UJ(::<.i5l ______ ~·--' 

~tbJ(5J 1 

Reference: 
MNC-1 FRAGO 096 (DTG010520DJUN04) 

1. Multi-National Corps- Iraq FRAGO 096 was issued on 1 Jun 04 with a view to immediately 
stopping damage to archaeological sites at Camp Alpha. a military establishment collocated with 

. . . (b) 5) 

4. As time is ofthe essence. I request that any concerns be referred directly to ltbJ(3J:1o usc §130b I 
II SJA. MNC-1. Likewise. if you approve of the MOU in its current form.! request that you execute it 
on behalf of the CPA. 

CF: 

Brigadier General. USA 
Chief of Staff 

Mr Giles Denham. Director of Civil Affairs. Coalition Provisional Authority, Iraq 

8(5) 
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JVIEJVIORL\.NDlJl\!1 OF lJNDERSTANDING 

BET\VEEN 

THE ADJVIINISTRL\. TOR, COALITION PROVISIONAL 
AlJTHORITY- IRAQ 

(OR ITS SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST) 

AND 

COJVIJVLL\NDING GENERL\.L, JVIlJL TI-NATIONAL CORPS­
IRL\.Q 

AND 

COJVIJVLL\NDING GENERL\.L, JVIlJLTI-NATIONAL DIVISION­
CENTERSOlJTH 

CONCERNING 

(b)(5) 

B(5) 
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(b )(3 ): 1 0 usc § 1 '>.~h 

From: Russell, John (SES-1) 
Sent: Sunday, May 16,200412:57 PM 
To: (b)(3):10 usc §130b 

cc: l'b)(6) 

'. ' Subject: RE: lshti::lr gate 

Dear Everyone, 

This sounds like a good start--j(b)(6) thank you very much for your frank assessment of 
the roots and causes of the problem. I do appreciate the efforts of all the people who 
have been trying to monitor the damage due to the transformation of a world heritage site 
into a military base by a military occupation authority. The inadequacy of such 
volunteerism, unfortunately, is evidenced by the fact that the site has been dramatically 
altered in just one year, and that if anything, the pace of these alterations has picked 
up in recent weeks with the rotation of units. I do not think it 1s, or ever was, 
sufficient to hope for the best. Even education is not enough if compliance is not 
required. 

(b)(5) 

As stated in the summary of regulations below 
requ1res the Army to observe host nation laws 

(b)(5) 

(which I think I already sent you) , AR 200-4 
and international treaties. l(b)(5) 

I strongly recommend that the Army Corps of Engineers St. Louis District Mandatory Center 
of Expertise for the cur.ation and Management of Archaeological Collections (MCX-CMAC) be 
brought in to monitor activities at Babylon and on other bases that include archaeological 
sites, to inform units about protection of archaeological sites, and to ensure compliance 
with regulations in AR 200-4. MCX-CMAC has the required expertise in this area. For an 
example of the services offered by archaeologists with USAC:F, see the following web site: 
http://www.mvs.usace.army.mil/engr/curation/Mission.htm 

The commitment of the US to the cultural heritaae of Iraa (and humanitv) is the auestion 
here. l(b)(5) 

(b)(5) 

I would be grateful for your thoughts on this matter. 

Best, 
John 

John Russell 
Senior Advisor for Culture 
CPA-Iraq 

-----Original Message-----
1 



From: l(b)(6l l[mailto: j(b)(6l bl(b)(2) 
Sent: Saturday, May 15, 2004 10;54 PM ~--------~ 

To: Russell, John (SES-1) 
Subject: RE: Ishtar gate 

Apparently, many people didn't (don't) seem to 
understand that ancient Babylon is not limited to the 
area inside the renovated walls. That is only the 
"inner city" of ancient Babylon. Our compound is 
actually right on top of a good bit of the "middle and 
outer city" of ancient Babylon. Our very presence 
here contributes to the distruction of archiological 
treasures, but it also helps protect the site from 
looting, vandelism, and other forms of destruction. 

l(b)(3):10 US ~ the Babil GC, some of the CIMIC 
Archiologists, Museum curators, attornies and 
commanders got together -- some became enlightened, 
some seem to have agreed not to sue the world 
(especially the US) for the destruction of a 6000 

year-old site, the excavation has stopped, and things 
seem to be under control. 

Any way, in an attempt to try to prevent any similar 
future situations, the CIMIC archiologists and I are 
going to put together an information paper on the 
extent of Ancient Babylon, and the international law 
concerning destruction, looting, and removing little 
souvenirs from such sites. Onceit is approved, we 
might have it translated into the languages of all 28 nationalities present here on this 
compound. I hope it helps. 

J(b)(6) 
---''Russell, John (SES-1)" 
<russellj~~(b~)(~2)~~~~~~~ 
> Thank you ..,_,llb"-"1('""'6-'--l _ _, 
> 

wrote: 

> J(b)(6) J can you please give us full details on this "misunderstanding" 
> and how the situation was brought "under control"? 
> This may help us 
> anticipate and prevent future misunderstandings. 
> 
> Such misunderstandings happen fairly regularly at 
> Babylon--by my count, 
> we have had 4 incidents involving threats to 
> archaeological remains at 
> Babylon since April 20. Thank you very much. 
> 
> Best, 
> John Russell 
> Senior Advisor for Culture 
> CPA 
> 

-----Original Message----­
From: Russell, John (SES-1) 
Sent: Friday, May 14, 2004 6:21 PM 
(b)( 

Subject: RE: More at Ishtar's temple - 2nd attempt to L(b_)_(6_) ________ ~ 

Dear ,_,_l(b_,_,J(__,_6) ___ __, 

J(b)(6) asked me to forward you 
mL~i~l~i~t_a_r_y __ f~o~rces under their overall 

this list of regulations that 
command, including the Poles) 

2 

the US Army 
must observe 

(and any 
for 



oultural sites. This was compiled by ~l(b_)(~6_) __________ ~ of the Cultural Property Office of 
the State Department. 

In addition to everything below, "Article 4: Respect for Cultural Property" of the 1954 
Hague Convention for the Protection of Cultural Property in the Event of Armed Conflict 
states: 

"1. The High Contracting Parties undertake to respect the cultural property situated 
within their own territory as well as within the territory of other High Contracting 
Parties by refraining from any use of the property and its immediate surroundings or of 
the appliances in use for its protection for purposes which are likely to expose it to 
destruction or damage in the event of armed conflict; and by refraining from any act of 
hos ti li ty directed against such property." 

(b)(5) 

Best, 
John 

John Russell 
Senior Advisor for Culture 
CPA 

-----Original Message-----
From: Gardiner, Bonnie S [mailto:GardinerBS@state.gov) 
Sent: Mondav, May 10, 2004 8:35 PM 
To: l(b)(6) I Russell John ( SES -1) 
(b)(6) 

Subject: Law, regulation and Ishtar's temple 

i(b)(6l 

Here's the gist of legal obligations: 
Department of the Army, Army Regulation 200-4, Cultural Resources Management (30 October 
1997) 

App JJ. cabi li ty: 
f. Commanders outside of the United States will comply with: 
(1) Substantive cultural resources requirements of general applicability included in host 

nation law and regulation to the extent practicable or, when adopted, those requirements 
identified in Final Gave rning Standards adopted by the Do[) Executive Agent. 
(2) International Treaties and Status of Forces Agreements. 
(3) NHPA Amendments of 1980, Section 402 (16 USC 470a-2). 

HOST NATION LAW 
Antiquities and Heritage Law 
Law No. 55 of 2002 
Article 3 "J~n y excavation, de st ruction, al te rna ti on made to the f ea tu res of such a site 
[cultural heritage site] shall also be prohibited" 

Article 5 - Third "Rights to use an archeological building or archeological site shall 
encompass the establishment of a no-use perimeter around archeological areas and buildings 
as well as are as e nsu n ng access to those sites. " 

Article 6 - Second "The An tiqui ties Authority may evacuate persons and property from 
archeological and cultural heritage sites a;:: well as from their no-use perimeters 1n case 
of a threat to people and to the archeological and cultural heritage sites." 

3 
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hrticle 9 - Third "Agencies responsible for the preservation and maintenance of 
archeolog cal sites shall obtain the written consent of the Antiquities Authority before 
making or altering any plans for locating general, industrial, agricultrual, and housing 
projects at those sites.'' 

Article 15 
It shall be prohibited to: 
Second -- 11 f'arming, residing, building a residence, or constructing any other structure on 
these archeological and cultural heritage sites, or altering them or those locations 
within them that are con side red sac red in any 1va y. " 

INTERNATIONAL TREATIES 

World Heritage Convention (US and Iraq are parties) 

Article 6 

Whilst fully respecting the sovereignty of the States on whose territory the cultural and 
natural heritage mentioned in Articles 1 and 2 is situated, and without prejudice to 
property right provided by national legislation, the States Parties to this Convention 
recognize that such heritage constitutes a world heritage for whose protection it is the 
duty of the international community as a whole to co-operate. 

The States Parties undertake, in accordance with the provisions of this Convention, to 
give their help in the identification, protection, conservation and presentation of the 
cultural and natural heritage referred to in paragraphs 2 and 4 of Article 11 if the 
States on whose territory it is situated so request. 

NOTE: Although the US is not a State Party to the 1954 Hague Convention for the Protection 
of 
Cultural Property In the Event of Armed Conflict, it has been said that we follow its 
principles. Thus: 

Article 5 

OCCUPATION 

1. Any High Contracting Party in occupation of the whole or part of the territory of 
another High Contracting Party shall as far as possible support the competent national 
authorities of the occupied country in safeguarding and preserving its cultural property. 

2. Should it prove necessary to take measures to preserve cultural property situated in 
occupied territory and damaged by military operations, and should the competent national 
authorities be unable to take such measures, the Occupying Power shall, as far as 
possible, and in close co-operation with such authorities, take the most necessary 
measures of preservation. 

3. Any High Contracting Party whose government is considered their legitimate government 
by members of a resistance movement, shall, if possible, draw their attention to the 
obligation to comply with those provisions of the Convention dealing with respect for 
cultural property. 

I hope this helps. Let me know if there is anything else I can do. 

Bonnie 

Bonnie Magness-Gardiner 
Senior Cultural Property Analyst 
Cultural Property Office \ECJ~/l?/C) 
US State Department 
Tel: (202) 619-5323 Fax: (202) 260-4893 
Email: GardinerBS@state.gov <mailto:GardinerBS@state.gov> 
URL: http://exchanges.state.gov/culprop 
This message is unclassified according to the definitions provided in Executive Order 
12958. 
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l(b)(3):10 usc §130b 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
cc: 
Subject: 

l(b)(6) 

IDoc. 66 

l(b)(6) I 
Friday, May 14, 200410:41 PM 
(b) 6) 

l(bJ(~ , . I Castle, Edwin (CIV) 
RE: More at lshtar's temple- 2nd attempt to "'l1b"""lt""6l,..---__, 

Wouldn't it make sense for the engineers to check with the senior advisor for 
culture or one of his staff before doing any digging in the vicinity the ruins, especially 
given their recent experience with picking sites that did disturb the ruins? Are there 
any cultural advisors at the CPA regional office? 

-----Original Message-----
From: l1bl13\:10 USC&130b I 
Sent: Friday, May 14, 2004 9:37 PM 
To: ( 
(COL.~t~0~-~6~1-------------------------~ 

Cc: l(b)(6) Edwin (CIV) 
Subject: RE: More at Ishtar's temple- 2nd attempt to ~l(b~)(~6~)------~ 

l(b)(6) 

Yes thanks, but the information from the s~nior adviser for culture is extremely 
disturbing from a pol/mi.l and CPA perspective. I am confident that you will take all 
necessary action but felt that you needed to see the email from him so you were fully 
informed as to the senior adviser's view. 

I agree, the facts are far from clear with your subordinate units, not ur.surprisingly, 
saying they are not interefering with the ruins while the senior adviser, being adamant 
the "base is atop the most historic part of the remains, which are much more extensive 
than anyone there seems to realize". I am sure that both parties have good reason for 
having these views and I have no doubt you will pursue the true situation but in the 
meantime I would counsel extreme caution in any further construction, which appears to 
accord with your approach. 

Let me know if you want me to talk to John Russell about this and ask him to leave it with 
you or take any other action? Cheers l1bl16ll 

-----Original Message-----
From: wl~\llRll_ ______________________________ ~~--------~ 

Sen if: Fr~ dav. Mav 14. 2004 7: Q1 PM 
To: {(b)(3):1? USC §130b 

(COL/0-6) 
Cc: l(b)(6) I; Castle, Edwin (CIV) 
Subject: RE: More at Ishtar's temple - 2nd attempt to Wflh~lffils~,======~,l 

llh\IRJ I 

Did you see my e-mail which indicates that the facts may not be clear in this case. Per 
the e-mail I sent earlier today, it appears that there was construction at an initial 
site that was a parking lot, and then, when it was discovered that the second proposed 
construction site was at the location of a historical site, they moved their construction 
to a third site that did not impinge on the ruins. 
l(bJ(6J I 

;~~~~9(b~(g)i :a 1 

Sent: Friday, 
To: lib )(6) ' 

Me~ sa a e-----, .I [ mai 1 to :t.:...l (b-'-')(6_:)-----,.J ___ ___JI@ j (b )(2) 

May 14, 2004 10: 31 
_@~(b)(2J 1 L_l(b_J(6_J -,---'~!L_(b_J(2_J ------' 

1 
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You can walk over to the site and find out under what authority they are doing the work, 
and .advise them of the John Russell, Senior Advisor for Culture, CPA-Iraq, message below. 
I suggest you take this message to whoever is in charge for doing the work, and get 
clarification before proceeding further. 

l(b)(3):10 usc §130b 
LTC, CA, US Army 
lAD CMO LNO Economy 
CPA A.l Hillah 

-----Ori~inal Message-----
From: l(bJ@* : I [mail to: '-'-l(b_,_,)(,..,_?l _ __J@I(b)(2) 
Sent: Thursday, May 13, 2004 9:41AM L---------------~ 
To: Russell, John (SES-1) 
Cc: l(b)(6) I 
Subject: RE: FW: more at Ishtar's temple 

Dear 
that 
with 

Sir: I have re-f orwarded your message to l(b)(6) I and also to the LNO out near 
area, mlfh~\f~R'I-----~--2'L .. It is my hope that he has been abie to intercede on our behalf 
the ground commander. Will give you an update as soon as I hear back from him. 

Thank you, 
l(bJ(6J I 
-----Original Message-----
From: Russell, John (SES-1) 
S t W d d M 12 2004 Jl 02 PM en • e nes av, av , • i 

• .. • " 
, () ~ l(b)(6) 

I b)(6) I 
1l(b)(6) 

I 
("' ~. l(b )(6) 0J(b)(2) 

(b)(6) 
. SubJect: RE: FW: more at Ishtar's temple 

D 
~)(3):10 usc I 

ear !f,13oh f 

I'd aooreciate knowina what l(bJ(6J I recommended. 
(b)(5) 

~(b~ll(~5'l __ ~~--~---.~--~--.-----~.-------------~~--~~----~~~--~--~~ Tne on~y 
thing that stopped them today was the appearance of the CPA coordinator for Babil 
governorate, but they'll be back with their bulldozers and ditch witches tomorrow. 

I 

8(5) 

Whatever we've done so far to get the word out to the military at Babylon hasn't been 
enough. If you wish, I can send you a summary of the numerous international laws and 
conventions that forbid an occupying power from negligently destroying the heritage of an 
occupied land. The only justification for damaging a World Heritage site is if combatants 
have taken up positions on it, which is also illegal. That is not the case here, and as 
the occupation authority, we are directly responsible for preserving the site. We'll be 
hearing much more about this in the international press if this gets out. 

The original decision to build a US military base on the most famous part of the most 
famous archaeological site in the world was an act of such colossal stupidity as to be 
beyond the comprehension of mere mortals. This is the sort of thing we used to criticize 
Saddam for, but he was smarter than to do this. In any event, I'm getting tired of 
hearing criminal or stupid US actions justified by saying "Saddam did it too." 

We need to do more to stop the continuing damage, and we need to do it now. If there's 
any vestige of Arts, Monuments, and Archives left in Civil Affairs, they need to be in 
Babylon now. May I have your recommendations please? Thank you very much. 

Sincerely, 
John Russell 
Senior Advisor for Culture 
CPA-Iraq 
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l(b )(2) 

IDoc. 68 

Here is today's report from Babylon from J(b)(3):10USC CPA Coordinator for Babil Province: 

I drove back past the 6/7th century site on the Ishtar temple mound tonight 
on my way back from downtown and came across an element of MND's Romanian 
engineering battalion doing -- well engineering. driving a bulldozer or 
some similar heavy thing, laying pipes, whatever it was it was work in 
preparation for further construction. I pulled over and approached 
them, 
asking to speak to whomever was in charge. (I speak broken Romanian from my 
assignment in Buchareas years ago.) The man 1n charge, I think a Sargent 

said that he had "'~rders" from his Major ( something like "J(b)(6) I') 
said was told to do the (construction) work by the MND Commander. 
asked 
them if they realized that they were in voilation of international 

who, he 
I 

1 a w I a g reernen ts on the p rote cti on of such his tori cal sites and they just 
looked at me. I repeated this and one of the solide rs said in Romanian " 
yes, but we have our orders and we will get into trouble if we don't follow 
them". I said who I was, and that I did not want the Romanians to get into 
trouble. I told them to go and tell their l(b)(6) I what I said, to tell 
him who I was. They said they would, laid down their equipment and left. 

I am saddened by all of this. So much damage has already been done to the 
entire site that I fear we are already in major trouble -- or will be when 
the international community gets a chance to see what has happened during 
the past year of "occupation care". All one really has to do is look at 

some overhead before April 03 and current overhead to see the extent. There 
are sufficient site excavation records remaining from the fire and in Berlin 
to make a damn good legal case against us. 

We can not replace/undo what has already been destroyed. But it bothers me 
that we all give lip service to protecting antiquity but in fact plod right 
on ahead with our destruction of it as if no one will ever notice or care. 
It is the arrogance that bothers me. I am just as much at fault for not 

being more of an advocate in my months here. but virgin 6!7th century 
material simple puts me over the edge. the photos attachced (1 hope) show 
the site from two nights ago. (the first two photos of the newest damage - the area that 
I can't see how 1(6)(6) I missed. The third photo shows a landing area done a month or two 
ago and in the background the stratigraphy dug through to to far south east of the newest 
area. I don't know the dates of this later area. 

-----Original Message----­
From: wltb~l~t§~l----------------~ 
Sent: Monday, May 10, 2004 10:45 AM 
(b)(6) 

1 (6J(6J 
Subject: RE: FW: more at Ishtar's temple 

I will get with ~lfh~l~IR~b~----.-~1 immediately and ask for his recommended 
action .... thanks .. '-I( _l(6_l _ __, 

-----Original Message-----
From: ~1(6~)(~6)~-~-~-~~~__,l 
Sent: Monday, May 10, 2004 !0;23 AM 
To: (b)(6) 
Cc: 

(b)(6) 

SubJect: RE: FW: more at Ishtar's temple 

5 

Russell, John 

Rus se 11, John 



ifh\IR\ 
" 

I 
' 

l(b)(6) 1s on travel. Does this issue warrant C-9 attention? 

ltb1(61l 

~~b)i:;,t10 USC Colonel, USAF 
Military Assistant to 
CPA Director of Civil Affairs 
Room Mf n Cell :(b )(2) 

Desk~=~-~========,-~ 
DSN ltb)(2) "Inveniam Vi am Aut Faciam" 

-----Original Message-----
From: J(b)(6) { 
Sent: Monday, May 10, 20040:i1 AM 
(b)(6) 

Subject: RE: FW: more at Ishtar's temple 

1(6)(6) 

Doe this fall into your lane? 

J(b J(6J 1 

1(6)(6) 
Military Assistant to 
CPA Director of Civil Affairs 
Room Ml17 
Cell: ~(b~)(~2)--------~ 

Des'~·~~========-.~ 
DSN (b)(2l I "Inven:.am Viam Aut Faciam 11 

-----Original Mes~sqa~a~e=====--. 
From: J(b)(6) @KtJ(2) I [mailto: '-'-l(b..:..:.)(6--=-) __ _.,@l(b)(2) 
Sent: Monday, May 10, 2004 10:05 AM '---==========---' 
To: Russell, John (SES-1) 

1(61 
Subject: Re: FW: more at Ishtar's temple 

Russell, John 

John: Also recommend you contact j(b)(6) I at the C9 F'vld in CPA Palace .... I believe he 
is the cultural advisor there ..... he can also influence I believe or he will know who 
can .... 1 don't know his NIPR address so maybe its best for you to pay him a visit 
there ...... I will try and get the message to him ... . 

----- Original Message -----
From: "Russell, John (SE:S-J.)'' <russellj@LI(b_J_(2_l============---' 
Date: Sunday, May 9, 2004 11:52 pm 
Subject: FW: more at Ishtar's temple 

> J(b)(6) I et rt.l , 

> 
> FYI 
> 
> John Russell 
> 

: ;~~~:jMW na 1 
• ~ 

> 
> 
> 
> 

Sent: Monday, May 1~, ,2004 (b)(6) "'• n...-
To: Russell, John (SES-1); 

l(b)(6) llf(b)(2) 

~ Cc: l(b)(6) 

@l(b)(2) 

I 
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> Subj ect : RE : mot:e at Ishtat: 's temple 
> • 
> john - it was cet: tainly not CPA/Hillah. It might have been 
> CPl'./ South 
> Centt:al in which case it was l(b)(6) I ot: mot:e like ly ~.::Re~lJ.:(6:!.)-~---­
> I ' ll 
> check . 
> Thet:e is no pt:ev1sous - 20th centut:y stt:uctut:e - because the at:ea used 
> 1S 
> 6th and 7th centt:uy BC . and a mong the vet:y few if not only at:eas 
> uneKcavated/daroaged at the entit:e site . 
> And , it is the Polish that alet:ted me to this . I am sut:e people mean 
> well, 
> but they at:e just unawat:e o f the significance of the at:ea . 
> 
> "'llb"'l"'C6"l-.---=~l at:e you awat:e of this? . 
> l(b)(6l I 
> 

> > 
> >De at: l<b.)l~)' I 
> > 
>>I ' m not convi nced 
> >attt:ibur ~ ~~·0~1~·t~.~~~~ 
> l<b)(6) d" )<>o; [{bl(2) 
> >Fi t:st Cav . ~a~n~d~ICb~l7-(6~l====d-~---------, 

that anything I did last time had t he effec t you 
I did contac t l(bl(6) I 

I of 
~ l(b)(6) I 

• • 
> dit:ectot: of 
> >the Fit:st Cav . Museum, both of whom have expt:essed an intet:est in 
> >pt:ese t:vi ng I t:aqi het:i tage, and both of whom (especially kblC6li may 
> be 1n 
> >a position to help . 
> > 
> >By the way, one of the militat:y involved 1n the Babylon wot:k 
>· w t:ote r n 

> >l(b)(6) ,.,.. l who coot:dinates out: ministt:y activities with the militat:y 
> >and othet: bt:anches of CPA. This officet: stated that they wet:e only 
> >bulldozing some mounds and not destt:oying any standing buildings . 
> He 
> >says the Amet:icans at:e no wot:se than Saddam (whew, that ' s a t:elief!) . 
> > 
> >And he says t hat they had pet:mission fmm CPA al-Hil la and t he 
> Poles to 
> >expand the he lipad on this site. Can you find out who ft:om CPA 
> aJ.-H i.ll .ll 
> >gave them this pe t:mission and copy l<bl(6l =I on the t:esponse? Thank 
> >you . 
> > 
> >Best , 
> >Jo hn 
> > 
> >John Russell 
> >Seniot: Advisot: fot: Cultut:e 
> >CP}l.- Iraq 
> > 
> >-----Ot:iginal Message---~==----~ 
> > F t:om : 1(6)(6) 

4 

P, l<bl(2) I 
> >Sent : '=s:-u_n_d,...a-y-,--:-:M,.--a-y----,.0""'9-, ~2 00 4 8 : 2 9 PM 
> >To : Russell , John (SES- 1) 
> >Subject : RE : mot:e at Ishtat: ' s t emple 
> > 
> >John - when at:e you actually departing - it will be asad here , but 
> >honestly 
> >I do wi s h I could just join you . can you 

7 

l et me know who you 



> f orwar<:l>these 
>>to . that way l can bother him/her directly after you leave . 
> take care 
> >of 
> >yourself . Kllli.6) I 
> > >From· "Russell. John ( ~ES- 1)" <russe llj@~.::((b:..:.;l(:::.2l:.._ _______ _ 
> > >To : HbJ(~L l@..,_l(b_,_,J(2--'-J ___ ----.JI 
> > >Subject : RE : more at Ishtar ' s temple 
>>>Date: Sun , 9 May 200 4 1S : ll:06 +0~00 
> > > 
>> >Dear ~ 
> > > 
> > >Thank you , I guess , f or this latest news . 
> it on 

I've tried to pass 

> > >where it may do some good . Fingers crossed . 
> > > 
> > >John 
> > > 

~ ~ ~; ~ ~~ ~ ou.l ~"-';J_,.(g_,t_n_a_l_M_e,:_s_a_a_e_l @L.:.I(b--'J-'-(2-'-l ---~,......J 
• I I • 4-J, .. AM > > >Sent · Sunday May 09 2004 7·~2 

(SES-1); irussellHaiTbJ(2) > > 
> > 
> > 

>!7' ...... · • v . us se l l John 
>.f',... . ) )( 0 

~(b)(6) .l@l(b)(6) (b)(6) 

> > >SubJ ect : more at I s htar ' s temple 
> > > 

(b)(2) 

I 
l 

> > >John - I am taking t he chance that you are still in Bag hdad and can 
> >help 
> > > 
> > >once more (last time you were a saint ) . On the chance you are not 
> > >there , I am tossing this out more widely 1n the hope someone has an 
> > >idea of 
> >where 
> > >we 
> > >can go . 
> > > 

> > >We all do understand the situation surrounding us in southcentral 
> Iraq 
> > >and 
> > >the need for military s taging here 1 n realitively peaceful Hillah. 
> Jl.nd 
> > >we 
> > >understand that ln the balance between sav1ng a rock and a man ' s 
> life , 
> > >He l l,. 
> > >the rock looses every time and that i s right a nd proper . 
> > > 
> > >Y.is you knew, a f ew wee ks ago the f ence protecti ng the Ishtar Templ e 
> > >mound was driven over by an US MP unit want ing to park its 
> car·s /tt""ucks. I 
> am 
> > >convinced these guys s imply had no c l ue what they were doing 
> nor of 
> the 
> > >importance of this 5000 year old site to human history . Thank you 
> fer 
> > >the 
> > >help in getting that sorted out and I am glad to tell you that the 
> > >re-built 
> > >Polish fence has only been run over once more and it is being 
> repaired 
> > >today. 
> > > 
> > >However , newly arrived US troops have begun constructing a 
> helicopter> >landing zone ln the area adjacent to the temple mound 
> itself. this 
> >area 

8 



0 

> > >is 
> >· >the last rema 1n1ng ONTO()Cfled 6 and 7th century BC templ e and 
> habit ation 
> > >a·r."·'a . " .... 
> > >of this World Heci tage "pro tected" temple . I know that it 
> looks like 
> a 
> > >stupid bunch o f worthless hills and it i s an attractive site to 
> >bulldoze 
> > >for 
> > >military use . But 1n terms o f world history it is priceless . The 
> > >Polish 
> > >command , I am told feels helpless in gett i ng the americans to stop 
> and 
> > >us e 
> > >another area (a bit futher away from the ma1n camp road behind land 
> KBR 
> > >has 
> ~ >already flattened has been suggested as an alternative) , but 
> they are 
> > >taking 
> > >photos to protec t themse lves against accus ation of destruction of 
> this 
> > >piece 
> > >of c ultural he ritage in the f uture . 
> > > 
> > >I was over t here last night and although some of the temple 
> area has 
> > >been 
> > >bulldozed and peeped, I did not see anyone at work . I will go over 
> > >the r e 
> > >again tonight (conditions permitting ) and try to talk to 
> whoever they 
> > >ace . 
> > > 
> > >Please, can you raise this issue aga1n s1nce you had so much 
> success> >last 
>>>time . Thanks l(b)(6) 1 
> > > 
> > > 

~~~~~--------------~~==-=~~~--~--~~~----> > >Add photos to your messages with MSN 8. Get 2 mont hs FREE* . 
> > >http : //join . ms n . com/?page=features/featuredemail 
> > > 
> > 

> >~~--~------~~--~~~~------~~--~----~~-------------------> >Protect your PC - get McAfee .com Vi rusScan Online 
> >http : //clinic . mcafee . com/clinic/ibuy/campaign . asp?cid=3963 
> > 
> 
> 
~~~~~~~~~----~==~--~~~--~~~~~------> STOP MORE SPAM with the new MSN 8 and get 2 months FREE* 

> http:/ /join .msn . com/?page=fea tures/junkmail 
> 
> 
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Page 1 of3 

• • 

From: l(b)(3):10 usc §130b 

Sent: Friday, May 14, 2004 4:41 PM 

To: Castle. Edwin 

u::ltb:.ul(:::..!3J:...:.: 1 =-o u:::..:s::...:c:....:.§._,1.::..:3o:.::b ______ __JI Russell, John ( SE S-i ) 

Subject: FW. Protection of Cultural Heritage 

All, 
This should be regarded as a ·~scouts report." Until we have confirmation, we shouldn't 
relax. 

l(bJ(6J I 

----Original Messag~---
From: J(b)(6J . l[mailto:L-I(b_J(_6J _ ___,~(bJ(2J 
Sent: Friday, May 14. 2004 04:28 
To: l(b)(3):10 usc §130b 
Cc: J(b)(3):10 usc §130b 
Subject: RE: Protection of Cultural Heritage 

Thanks. Please keep me informed of any further developments. The message needs to get back to all those 
who were concerned about the land, but only after we are absolutely certain there was no interference with 
'cultural ground'. 

J(b)(3):10 usc §1306 

----Original Message---­
From: J(b)(3):10 usc §130b 
Sent: Friday, May 14, 2004 12;20 R\11 
l(b)(3): 10 usc §130b 

-Subject: RE: Protection of Cultural Heritage 

All, 

. ·--·· .. ... ' 

I have spoken with the C? LNO in MND-CS, 1 LT Larson. He gave me the following preliminary 
report and will follow up with a written document detailing the events concerning the archaelogical site 
at Camp Alpha. 

Bottom Line There is no issue he is aware of. 

The 1AD needed to construct a helipad for use as a FARP. An existing parking lot was 
identified. The design interferred with some part of a KBR service site. 
A second configuration was designed that apparently would have put the site on top of a historical 
site. The on-site archaeologist was consulted and a third configuration was designed and was 
approved by the on-site archaeologist. The third configuration required moving some existing hesco 
barriers but did not effect the historical site. 

I will forward the report from the LNO as soon as I receive it. 

Thanks. 
J(b)(3): 10 Q§C §I 
CJTF-7; C? 
Chief of Operations 

;;~~~!fflR~I Messaa~--- . I [mailto:L.I(b_J(6_J __ @l(b)(2) 

Sent: Fri~av Mav 14 2004 8:40 AM 
To: Free.l~b)(3):10 usc §130b 

5/14/2004 

IDoc. 69 
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5/14/2004 

Page 2 of3 
~· 

Cc: l(b )(3 ): 1 o usc § 130b 
"' Subject: RE: Protection of Cultural Heritage 

lf~l(~J:; ?00 I 
This was addressed to both us. Can you please assure me that you will follow right thru with 
thi~ Please let me know ifvou would like me to aet involved in anv wav. ltbl(5J I IB~S) 
l(b)( l I 
l(b)(5J I 

Thanks 

l(b)(3):10 usc §130b 

---Original Message---­
From: j(b)(3):10 usc §13ob 
Sent: Thursday, May 13, 200411:26 .Aivl 
llb)(3):1'0 1<0; §130b 

H=lb=\r3=l:'-"1 o,._,u=s=c'"-"&_,_,13=0""-b ~· ------~· --~--'1 Russell, John ( SES-1) 
Subject: FW: Protection of Cultural Heritage 

l(b J(3J: 1 o us 1 

I have attached an e-mail which reports engineer activity in MND(CS). 
The engineer activity is taking place within the ruin of Babylon, the seat 
of an ancient culture, with great historic significance. I do not have any 
further information than that which is contained in the attached e-mail. 
I forward the information to you as the staff proponent for theater 
engineer operations. This information need to immediately be provided 
to those units under the C7's control, and through you to MND(CS). 
Please reply to me ASAP so that I may provide feedback to CPA. 
Thank you, 
j(b)(3):10 usc §130b 

;-~~::il/~{(lJ ~ IIAss<>nA---- I [m ailto j""(b""J(6"'J ----.®1 (b )(2) 

Se · y, 
To: (b J(6J a; (b )(2) (b J(6J 
Cc (b)(6) . (b)(2) (b)(6) . (b)(2) u n (SE&1); 
b 6 l(bJ(2J I 
Subject: Protection of Cultural Heritage 

l(b)(6) 

(0 ll::.) 

8(5) 
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l(b)(5) B(S) 

j(b)(3):10 usc §130b 
_, 

Group Capt.:1in 
Rov.:1l Au.<::tnllian Air Force 0-6 • 
Office of the Gener.:1l Com1<::el 
Coalition Pro'visiont:ll Aufhoritv • 
CPA Palace M 115 

l(b)(2) 

5/14/2004 



.. 

Archeological Sites Protection Project 

The Iraqi Board of Antiquities, a semi autonomous agency of the Ministry of Culture, is 
the supreme authority responsible for Museums, archeological sites, excavations, heritage 
buildings, etc. 
The Director General for Excavations oversees the 7,273 identified archeological sites, 
3,232 of which are protected by 1,272 guards, currently in the payrolls of the Ministry of 
Culture. See the attached Provinces Summary. 
The actual number of sites not yet identified could reach 1 00,000. 
The Board is represented in each Province by an Archeological Inspector who is 
responsible for the sites and the guards. 

The present system is totally ineffective in confronting the upsurge of organized 
looting currently taking place, with the total obliteration of entire ancient cities. 

The A.S.P.Project in its first phase, to be completed by December 31,2003. foresees that 
the guards, after appropriate training, shall receive FPS status, with the tight to detain 
looters for 12 hours~ a unifonn, additional weapons, 40 4wd vehicles, and a radio 
communication system connecting them from the sites to the Jocal Iraqi Police Station or, 
for the time being, to the Coalition h1temal Security Forces. 
The guards' task, besides guarding the sites, will be to alert and ask the intervention of 
the local Secunty Forces in all cases oflooting or non authorized agricultural activities on 
the sites. 
In due time, local Security Forces shall receive instructions from their own authorities to 
intervene on the sites, when alerted, as a matter of the highest priority. 

Mario Bondioli Osio 
Ambassador 
Senicnr Advisor- Minisr of Culture 
Tel. ~l(2l _ 

1
(b)(6) ®J(b)(2) I 

Prof. John Russell 
Dep~*"""' OI:....J~d.so.r..,- Ministry of Culture 
Tel. (b)(2J 

russellj@ (bJ(2l 
'----------' 

IDoc. 70 
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Provinces Summary 

Province Number of Guarded Number of 
Sites Sites Guards 

Ninawa 1500 801 211 

At Ta'mim 900 110 29 

Salah ad Din 512 201 147 

Diyala 929 693 214 

Baghdad 350 99 86 

AIAnbar 410 20 10 

Babil 423 450 113 

Karbala 45 83 43 

An Naja{ 74 61 27 

Wasit 461 51 45 
. 

AI Qadidiyah 500 144 89 
. 

A1 Muthana 115 152 35 

May san 371 252 107 

Dhi Quar 592 105 109 

AI Basrah 91 10 7 

7273 3232 1272 
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*** UNCLASSIFIED *** 
***** This Message Has Been Altered ***** 

RTTUZ~~ RUEHGBA0664 1631002-UUUU--RUEKNMA. 
ZNR ~LT ZOC STATE ZZH 
MSI369? 
RR RUEHC 
:>E RUEHGB #0664/01 1631002 
ZNR UUUtTU ZZH 
R 111002Z wUN 04 
FJYI CPA BAGHDAD 
TO RUEKJCS/SECDEF WASHINGTON DC 
RUEHC/SECSTATE WASHOe 1303 
RHEHN'SC/WHITE HOUSE NSC W.MHDC 

:JNCLAS BAGHDAD 000664 

SENSITIVE 

. E.O. ~2956: N/A 
TAGS: PREL I MOPS I KP-~0 I SCUL I IZ 

Page 1 of 4 

SUB,JECT: CPA 13 OS: DAMAGE TO ARCHEOLOGICAL RUINS IN BABYLON 

1. (SBti) SUMMARY. THE PRESENCE OF THE COALITION MILITARY BASE 
AT THE ANCIENT CITY OF BABYLON HAS DAMAGED LARGE AREAS OF THE 
ARCHAEOLOGICAL SITE. MEASURES ARE BEING INITIATED BY THE U.S. 
MILIT.Jl..RY IN AN ATTEMPT TO LIMIT NEW DMlAGE TO THE SITE. BUT 
DAMAGE WILL INEVITABLY CONTINUE WHILE MILITARY ARE BASED THERE. 
'l'HE BASE SHOULD BE RELOCATED WHEN OPERATIONALLY FEASIBLE WITHOU1~ 
DISRUPTlNG ONGOING OPERATIONS AND PROTECTION TO THE SITE. END 
SUMMARY. 

2. (U) THE U.S. MILITARY ESTABLISHED A MILITARY BASE DIRECTLY ON . . 
THE SITE OF IMPORTANT ARCHAEOLOGICAL REMAINS AT BABYLON 
IMMEDIATELY AFTER THE \'lAR IN 2003. ROI>tANIA}.r AND POLISH CCALITION 
FORCES ALSO NOW OCCUPY THE SITE. POLISH CIVILIAN ARCHAEOLOGISTS 
WERE ASSIGNED TO BABYLON AFTER NOVEMBER 2003 TO ADVISE THE 
MILITARY REGARDING ACTIONS. THAT MIGHT DAMAGE THE ARCHAEOLOGICAL 
REMAINS. 

3. {SBUi REPORTS IN MID-IvtAY 2 004 FROM CPA, U.S. MILITARY, POLIBH 
MILITARY, AND IR.~QI SOURCES CONFIRMED A RENEWAL OF MILITAiiY 
BULLDOZING ACTIVITY ON THE SITE. IT APPEARS THAT THESE 
ACTIVITIES WERE INITIATED WITHOUT CONSULTING THE APPROPRIJl,TE 
ARCHAEOLOGICAL AUTHORITIES CONCERNING THE POTENTIAL IMPAC'I' OF THE 
PROJECT ON THE SITE. 

4. (SBtT) ON 27 MAY 2004, A DELEGATION FROM CPA AND MNC-1 WENT TO 

OSD - SECDEF CABLE DISTRIBUTION: 

~~~~EF: -··· =1. g~~~EC: ~ 
• 

EXECSEC: I 
CABLE CH : __ _ FILE: _____ _ 

USDP =---~~'--- DIA : _______ OTHER =-,,t-~~Cf'.r.....~--~-------
USDl: __ _,/'---- PER SEC:~--- COMM: ____ _ 

*** UNCLASSIFIED *** 

!Doc. 71 

.. 
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*** UNCLASSIFIED *** 
***** This Message Has Been Altered ***** 

Page 2 of 4 

BABYLON TO MAKE A PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT OF DAMAGE DONE TO THE 
SITE BY THE MILITARY BASE. THERE THEY MET IRAQI STATE BOARD OF 
ANTIQUI?IES INSPECTOR FOR BABIL DR. MARYAM OMR.AN MOSSA AND CPA 
BASIL GC MARY WITT. 

5. (SBU) THE TEAI-1 DISCOVERED THAT FRAGILE CULTURAL REMAINS ARE 
UNDER EVERY NETER OF THE BASE, WHICH IS LOCATED DIRECTLY ATOP THE 
RICHEST KNOWN ARCHAEOLOGICAL AREA INSIDE ANCIENT BABYLON. THE 
DAMAGE DONE OVER THE PAST YEAR IS EXTENSIV,E. THE APPEARANCE OF 
THE SITE HAS BEEN TRANSFORMED: WHERE THERE PREVIOUSLY WERE 
ROLLING MOUNDS FORMED BY THE REMAINS OF ANCIENT BUILDINGS, NOW 
THERE ARE HELIPADS, PARKING LOTS, TRAILER PARKS, AND UTILITY 
AREAS. 

6. (SBUl RECENT DAMAGE TO ARCHAEOLOGICAL AREAS INCLUDES: 

THREE HELIPADS BULLDOZED FROM AREAS KNOWN TO CONTAIN TEMPLE 
.1~\ND RESIDENTIAL REMAINS DATING FROM CA. 2000 TO 500 BC. 

-- A TRENCH AND BERM EXTENDING HUNDREDS OF METERS FROM THE AREA 
OF THE TEMPLE TOWER (THE "TOWER OF BABEL") TO THE PROCESSIONAL 
WAY, DUG VERY RECENTLY. 

INTENSIVE DEVELOPMENT J~OUND THE HELLENISTIC THEATRE. 

7. (SBUi AS LONG AS THE BASE REMAINS ON THE SITE, FURTHER 
DAMAGE IS INEVITABLE, INCLUDING THE COLLAPSE OF FRAGILE WA.LLS DUE 
TO VIBRATION FROM THE PASSAGE OF HEAVY VEHICLES AND LOUD 
HELICOPTERS, AND THE BULLDOZING, STEAMROLLING, AND DITCH DIGGING 
THAT CHARACTERIZE AN ACTIVE BASE. 

8. (SBU) ACTION IS NEEDED, AS BABYLON IS ONE OF THE MOST FAMOUS 
ARCHAEOLOGICAL SITES ~N tHE WORLD AND IS HISTORICALLY IRAQ'S MOST 
POPULAR TOURIST DESTINATION. 

9. (SBU) ACTIONS TAKEN BY MNF-I AND MNC-I: 

FRAGO ISSUED BY MNC-I, WHICH ORDERS CONSTRUCTION WORK AT THE 
BASE TO CEASE AND THE ESTABLISHMENT IN THE NEAR FUTURE OF AN 
ARCHAEOLOGICAL BOARD TO REVIEW FUTURE CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS ON 
THE SITE. 

-- DIREC'I'IVE 27 ISSUED BY MNF-I REGARDING THE CESSATION OP 
CONSTRUC'J'ION WORK IN THE VICINITY OF BABYLON. 

-- MNC-I ISSUED A WARNING ORDER TO RELOCATE CAMP ALPHA (CAMP . 
BABYLON) AWAY FROM THE RUINS. PLANS ARE BEING DEVELOPED. IT IS 
UNCLEAR WHEN THIS MOVEMENT WILL TAKE PLACE. 

10. (U· ON JUNE 8, CPA PERSONNEL REVISIT~D THE SITE IN ORDER TO 
MAKE A PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT OF THE EFFECT OF FRAGO 096. THEY 
INTERVIEWED ONE OF THE LOCAL IRAQI ARCHAEOLOGISTS, HAYDER ABO .AL 
WAHID, AND TWO POLISH CIVILIAN ARCHAEOLOGISTS ASSIGNED TO THE 
sITE t 1(6)(6) ' so - " '"'" " " "I 

*** UNCLASSIFIED *** 
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11. (U) THE POLISH ARCHAEOLOGISTS ARE TRYING TO LIMIT FURTHER 
DAM..~GE. THEY ARE ADVISORS, HOWEVER, AND LACK ANY AUTHORITY OVEE 
THE MILITARY AT THE SITE. KBR, WHICH :i:S RESPONSIBLE FOR MUCH OF' 
THE ONGOING DAMAGE 1 MAY NOT BE COMPLYING WITH FRAGO 096. ALSO, 
IT APPEARS THAT FRAGO 096 IS NOT BEING APPLIED OR THAT THE VERY 
LIMITED FORCE PRO'I'ECTION EXCEPTIONS CONTAINED WITHIN IT ARE BEING 
MISUSED. THIS HAS BEEN THE JUSTIFICATION FOR MANY OF THE PAST 
ACTIONS THAT D~~GED THE SITE. THE POLISH ARCHAEOLOGISTS 
RECOMMEND ABANDONING CAMP BABYLON AND MOVING OPERATIONS TO NEAREIY 

CAMP BRAVO. 

12. (Ui THE ACTING UK SPECIAL REPRESENTATIVE FOR IRAQ HAS 
EXPRESSED THE COUNTRY'S SERIOUS CONCERNS AS WELL AND AGREES WITH 
THE BELOW RECOMMENDATIONS. 

13. (U} FRAGO 096 IS NOT SUFFICIENT TO PROTECT BABYLON FROM 
DAMAGE AND DETERIORATION. AS LONG AS MILITARY OPERATIONS 
•:ONTINUE ::m THE SITE, FURTHER DEGRADATION OF THE ARCHAEOLOGICAL 
REM...l.\INS IS INEVI1.'ABLE. THEREFORE I HAVE DIRECTED THAT THE 
FOL~OWING STEPS BE TAKEN: 

. 
--- MNF-I HAS BEEN ASKED TO DEVELOP AND IMPLEHENT PLANS TO MOVE 
THE MILITARY BASE AWAY FROM ARCHAEOLOGICAL SITE. IRAQI 
ARCHAEOLOGISTS SHOULD SUPERVISE THE REMOVAL OPERATION IN ORDER '1~0 

PROTECT THE SITE FROM FURTHER DAMAGE. 

NO FLTRTHER CONSTRUCTION WORK OR EXCAVATION SHOULD TAKE PLACE 
AT 'rHE SITE. 

COALI'l'ION FORCES WILL CONTINUE TO PROVIDE SECURITY TO ?ROTEC'l~ 

'rHE SITE FROM VANDALS AND LOOTERS. 

-- THE MINISTRY OF CULTURE HAS BEEN ASKED TO DEVELOP A REMEDIAL 
. . 

PLAN TO REPAIR OF AMELIORATE THE DAMAGE DONE TO DATE. 

--- WE WILL ISSUE A PRESS STATEMENT TO STATE WHAT HAS BEEN DONE . 

BREMER 

•JOINT STAgF V1 
ACTION (U) 
INFO CM.Z..S ( * } CMAS ( 1} JSAMS ( *) AF -CC-PO LAD ( * ) 

BOARDMAN(*} NOOH(*) JCSONNIPRDA(*) JCSONSIPRDA(*) 
+Si'\FE 

SECDEF V2 
ACT ..LON 
INFO CHAIRS(*) CHAIRS TESTBED(*) SECDEF-C(l) 

SECDEF-C{*) C3I-DASD-DCIO(*) USDAT:STS(*) 
ESC-SMTP(*) OSDONNIPRDA(*) OSDONSIPRDA(*) 

+JCP E~~IL CUSTOMER//CHAIRS// 
+USDP:ESC 

*** UNCLASSIFIED *** 

(U) 

l 
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fl:ongrt.fi5 of tbt 1tnittb 
~ou~t of ~eptt~entatibt~ 

lla~ington, :lDit 20515 

The Honorable Donald H. Ru.msfeld 
Secretary of Defense 
1000 Defense Pentagon 
Washington, DC 20301 

Dear Secretary Rumsfeld: 

July 8, 2003 

As you know, one ofthe concerns ofthe international community relates to 
protection of Iraqi art and archeological antiquities. The good news is that most objects in 
the display area of the National Musewn in Baghdad have largely been accounted for, 

· with items still missing being reduced according to some reports to the double digit lc~vel. 
The bad news is that there are believed to be many thousand missing items from storage 
and other areas of the Museum. As you also know, there have been many identifiable 
losseS·Of great cultural significance from the Baghdad Museum as well as many other 
archeological sites across the nation. Experts report that the entire collection of ancient 
cylinder seals, items linked to the invention of cuneifonn writing, is currently missing. 
These stolen materials are representative of numerous artifacts easily tradable on the 
international market. 

fu addition, then~ was considerable looting at other cultural institutions in 
Baghdad, particularly the Archives, Library and two modem art museums, and large 
scale vandalism of archeological sites in southern Iraq, affecting such sites as Adab, 
Umm al-Aqarib, Ifin, Larsa .and Umm al-Hafriyat. Less extensive looting has taken ,,lace 
at the site ofNinevah in the north. The extent oflooting at the archeological museum in 
Mosul is not yet known, but the museum itself has apparently suffered considerable 
damage. · · 

While we are encouraged to hear of military protection being offered at the sites 
in Babylon, Ur, and Nimrod, we are deeply concerned as looting continues at locations 
including Nineveh, Jokha-Umma, Ifin, Adab, Larsa, Umm al-Aqarib and Umm al­
Hafriyat. We feel that, wherever possibJe, these archeological and cultural sites should 
receive the type of protection that only the presence of military personnel- U.S. or New 
Coalition- can provide. We would also ask that the administration work with ow· allies 
to extend similar protection to archeological sites in post-war Afghanistan. 

We bring this to your attention recognizing that U.S. and coalition forces took 
extensive measures to limit damage to the numerous sites of archeological and cultural 
interest during Operation Iraqi Freedom. The reported absence of any bomb damage to 

· · {!h1otJ;3Y-tJ~-· 
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the archeological sites in Iraq is reflective of the precision and admirable length that the 
military went to protect these sites during the initial stages of armed conflict The · · 
problem of subsequent looting was perhaps not as foreseen as lrindsight now allows, but 
given the importance ofhistory to all cultures, particularly the region of the world we 
consider the cradle of civilization, we are concemed that a clear priority be given to 
protecting Iraq's past from the lawlessness of the present. 

At the risk of presumption, we would like to suggest that the assistance in site 
protection might be considered a kind of discreet mission particularly appropriate for 
troops of several of the countries that have indicated a desire to be helpful in bringing 
greater order to Iraq today. · 

Phil S. English 
Member of Congress 

Sincerely, 

Member of Congress 

P.S. The Dept. may be .interested in legislation (HR 2009) we have introduced to limit 
importation into America oflooted Iraqi artifacts. 

Encl: HR 2009 
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COALITION PROVISIONAL AUTHORITY 
BAGHDAD 

07 January 2004 

MEMORANDUM FOR THE CHIEF OF STAFF, COMBINED JOINT TASK FORCE 7 

FROM ADMINISTRATOR, COALITION PROVISIONAL AUTHORITY 

SUBJECT: Tasking Letter- 4007·301 Request for Information in Support of the CPA Ministry of Culture­
Archeological Site Security 

Reference: Request from Ministry of Culture 

I request that the Commander, Combined Joint Task Force 7 (CJTF-7) take the appropriate 
action to provide information support to the Ministry of Culture. 

WHO: Coalition Provisional Authority - Ministry of Culture 

WHAT: The Ministry of Culture requires a list from each Major Subordinate Command (MSC) nationwide 
detailing any postings of Facility Protection Service (FPS) guards on arcfleological sites implemented by 
the MSC. Information required inclUdes grid locaUon, name of the site. and current number of FPS 
guards. Additional information should also include if coalition military forces are guarding any 
archeological sites and require replacement by FPS guards upon their departure, as well as plans for 
continuing archeological protection. 

WHEN: 15 January 2004. 

WHERE: All MSC Areas of Responsibility 

WHY: The Ministry of Culture's State Board of Antiquities maintained an archeological security force prior 
lo the war, and is in the process of standing this force back up. In order to not duplicate the security 
effort. the Ministry of Culture requires an accurate listing of sites where the mUitary has placed FPS 
guards or are guarding sites with miliary forces. 

COORDINA TING INSTRUCTIONS: 

Direct coordination authorized between the tasked unit(s) and the Point or Contact listed below. 

Coordination Office (RCO) Alternate 
DNw:: llbl~ land NIPRNET 

l(b)(6 l(b)(2) ]<>r 

N: j (b)(2) · · nf r.ru Ia r:l · et OS 
: (b)(6) f), b) 2 

~(bl
1

(2) 
. 

CENTRIX: (b)(6) 

/ / / !-___ ___ 

Stephen T. Smith 
Chief of Staff 
Coalition Provisional Authority 

IDoc. 73 






